LOW INCOME OVERSIGHT BOARD 

APPROVED MEETING MINUTES

Los Angeles, CA

Thursday, September 15, 2005


I. Call to Order

Chairman, Alan Woo called the meeting to order at 10:07AM.
Members Present:  Alan Woo, Ortensia Lopez, Commissioner Dian Grueneich, Maria Juarez, Ron Garcia, Tim Dayonot and John Nall.  Board Member Janine Scancarelli was necessarily absent.
Public Present:  Jack Parkhill, Mary O’Drain, Gregg Lawless, Dave Wear, Lad Lozens, Yvette Vasquez, Yole Whiting, Yoy Yamagata, Jeannie Harrell, Eric Quanot, Richard Villasenor, Alex Sotomayor, Jim Hodges, Monte Winegard, Edward O’Campo, Luis Chavez, Wallis Winegard, Jay Thomas, Kathy Ford, Bob Burt, Dennis Osmer, Bruce Patton, Frances Thompson, Linda Fontes, Arleen Novotney, Anne Smith, Carl Wood, Steven Geraci, Doug Price, Bill Julian, Gary Griffen, Martin Castro, Brian Lee, Ron Moore, Gerlie Collado, Eileen V. Miranda, Ruth Chu, and Pearcy Mautner 
Teleconference:  Richard Shaw, Greg Redican, Katherine Parlin, Tom Spangler, and Mariana  Campbell
PUC Staff:  Karen DeGannes, Terrie Tannehill, Zaida Amaya, Sean Gallagher, Manuel Ramirez, Linda Serizawa, Theresa Cho, Steve Weissman, Rashid Rashid and Regina Birdsell
II. Introductory Remarks & Announcements

a. Appreciation for Outgoing Board Member, Tim Dayonot
Before moving to the agenda, Chairman Woo announced that Board Member Tim Dayonot, the current Director of the California Department of Community Services and Development (CSD) will be leaving his position at the agency and on the Board.  Chairman Woo took this opportunity to express his gratitude to Board Member Dayonot for his leadership, all of his hard work not only for the LIOB but also for all of his to the low income community.  Chairman Woo stated that Mr. Dayonot has been an exemplary Director for CSD and he will be missed.  Commissioner Grueneich commented that although she has had very little opportunity to work with Mr. Dayonot on LIOB issues, she has had the privilege to work with him in a prior capacity.  She stated that she has always thought incredibly highly of Mr. Dayonot.  Commissioner Grueneich moved to have staff prepare a formal resolution and commendation of thanks to be presented to Board Member Dayonot at the next LIOB meeting.  The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Lopez and carried by a 6/1 vote.  Board Member Dayonot abstained.
b. Changes in Low Income Program Staffing
Commissioner Grueneich took this opportunity to inform the Board that there have been some staffing changes in the Energy Division’s Low-Income section. With these changes she hopes to have a very well functioning Board.  Commissioner Grueneich commended Mr. Manuel Ramirez for his tremendous job with the Board; she mentioned that Mr. Ramirez has been juggling between working with the Board and a full time assignment on the Procurement proceeding.  She clarified that any problem that might have risen at the Commission with the Board had absolutely nothing to do with Mr. Ramirez’ commitments and abilities.  She announced that Karen DeGannes from the Energy Division will be taking over from Mr. Ramirez.  Ms. DeGannes will be doing a lot of the day to day work with the Board. Commissioner Grueneich also emphasized that Mr. Ramirez is not leaving the LIOB and will be helping out in making sure that we have a good transition and will be providing back-up to Ms. DeGannes.  The Commissioner also introduced Sean Gallagher, Director of Energy Division, Theresa Cho, her Legal Advisor as well as her subject matter Advisor on low-income matters.  She also introduced Steve Weissman who is the ALJ on in the low income proceeding. ALJ Weissman was previously Advisor to Commissioner Carl Wood, who served as an LIOB member.  Commissioner Grueneich also introduced Linda Serizawa Director of 
the CPUC’s Consumer Services Division.  She stated that Ms. Serizawa has done a tremendous job of responding to consumer inquiries and complaints.  Ms. Serizawa has had a long standing involvement with the Low Income Oversight Board and low-income matters, as well.  Finally, the Commissioner recognized Terrie Tannehill and Zaida Amaya both from the Energy Division, who have been very capable support staff to the LIOB since it inception. 
Board Member Dayonot applauded Commissioner Grueneich for all of her efforts and stated that there were some major challenges in terms of administrative support for the LIOB and rather than allowing them to fester and impact the Board’s ability to do its job and fulfill its mission, Commissioner Grueneich rose to the occasion and helped create a scenario that is going to be better for everyone and give the LIOB a fresh start.   Board Member Dayonot confirmed that his last day as Director of CSD is October 7, 2005.  
Commissioner Grueneich noted that there is a vacancy in the LIOB and noted that it is a vacancy that is filled by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC or Commission).  She informed the Board that the Commission solicited and received a wide range of applications. She has personally conducted interviews and is in the process of making recommendations to the full Commission.  Commissioner Grueneich hopes that an appointment will be made at the next Commission meeting.  
Lastly, the Commissioner mentioned that the CPUC is scheduling a special hearing in Los Angeles on the afternoon of October 6, 2005 which will focus on some of the very grave problems that we are facing with the rising cost of natural gas.  Chairman Woo noted that he has been working with Director Sean Gallagher on the Agenda for October 6th.  The meeting will include presentations from two panels. One will consist of utility company representatives and the second panel will be comprised of community based organizations.  Chairman Woo stated that he will be representing the LIOB at the October 6th Full Panel Hearing.  He added that members of the public will be invited to attend as well.  Chairman Woo added that the Full Panel Hearing will be an extraordinary opportunity for the Commission to hear from the community about low-income issues.  The meeting will focus on utility low income program budgets, types of programs, and as everyone knows energy (natural gas) prices are rising and as such some of the utilities are requesting increases in their rates.  This issue is of particular importance to those who are social service advocates and the communities they serve.  Chairman Woo encouraged everyone to attend the October 6, 2005 Full Panel Hearing.  The Chairman requested Board Members’ assistance in notifying the community and getting people out so they can have an opportunity to discuss these issues.  Mr. Ramirez noted that there are flyers regarding the October 6, 2006 Full Panel Hearing for those who are interested in getting more detailed information.  
Mr. Gallagher concurred with Chairman Woo’s statement and added that is the October 6th meeting will be a really good opportunity for the Commission to listen to the public as it prepares to act on the very important issue of keeping winter gas bills reasonable for low income consumers. He mentioned that natural gas prices will rise this winter and we really need to begin now to ensure that we are doing what we can to protect customers and to make sure that they are doing the things that they can to protect themselves.  As Chairman Woo mentioned, this meeting will give the Commission an opportunity to hear directly from the community on these issues.  Chairman Woo thanked the Commission for its efforts to facilitate the October 6th Full Panel Hearing and for creating an opportunity for the community to participate meaningfully.
c. Approval of Agenda (Document Index #1)
Due to a schedule conflict, Board Member Dayonot requested to move item VII “LIEE Standardization Project” to the morning discussion.  The Board agreed to move this item to the morning discussion. 
III. Administrative Matters

a. Review and Approval of LIOB Draft Meeting Minutes – April 11, 2005 (Document Index #2)
Chairman Woo requested a motion to approve the April 11, 2005 meeting minutes. It was so moved by Board Member Dayonot and seconded by Vice Chair Lopez.  The motion carried unanimously (Nall, Garcia, Grueneich, Woo, Dayonot, Lopez and Juarez).  Board Member Dayonot thanked staff for putting together very thorough minutes. 

b. Sub-Committee for Strategic Planning

The Board decided to remove this item from the Agenda and move it to item V LIOB Strategic Plan.  In order for the Board to further discuss and review a recent handout by Mr. Ramirez he recommended deferring any action on this item until the next LIOB meeting, this would give the Board an opportunity to provide feedback at the next meeting. 

c. Financial Tracking Report (Document Index #3)
This is an information only item.  This report summarizes the activity on expenses incurred by Board Members for the operation of the LIOB.  Chairman Woo requested from staff a report that summarizes the LIOB expenses incurred by Energy Division staff, as well.  Mr. Ramirez will look into it, however he suggested that the budget does not allocate cost for CPUC staff the way it is done for Board Members.  He stated that he will attempt to gather expenditure information by specific project and will report to the Board.  Commissioner Grueneich suggested that at the next LIOB meeting staff should prepare a presentation that clearly specifies the extent of staff effort within the Commission, who is assigned to these programs and what their responsibilities are.  This information would provide a better picture of how the Low Income programs are being handled at the CPUC.  
IV. LIEE Standardization Project

Chair Woo stated that the there is a Standardization Project that is composed of mainly utilities companies that have been preparing some changes in their procedures books that contractors use in terms of implementing the low-income programs.  There have been some recommendations and changes for some things.  In terms of the process there have been community groups that have discussed that they did not have an opportunity to comment on it.  Commissioner Grueneich asked for an update from the utilities on where the project stands.  Frances Thompson representing PG&E provided an update status on where the utilities are with the LIEE Standardization Project.  LIEE Standardization Team filed proposed changes to the LIEE Policy and Procedures Manual and Weatherization Installation Standards Manuals on January 18, 2005.  Most of the changes were made to comply with changes in code; respond to questions/comments from field staff; bring P&P and WIS Manuals into consistency with each other and clarify policies previously recommended and/or adopted.  Comments were filed by parties which focused on procedural issues; changes to the 80-20% rule for multi family building and consideration of furnace repair and replacement as minor home repairs.  In a March 25, 2005 ACR, the Commission instructed the Team to reconsider proposed changes through a process that increased public input.  This reconsideration was tabbed as Phase 5.1 of the Standardization Project.  On April 25, 2005, the Standardization Team submitted a work scope for Phase 5.1 that addressed reconsideration of changes recommended in the January 18 filing; Development of policies and installation standards for new measures proposed by the Team for the 2006 LIEE Program and Development of policies and installation standards necessary to comply with new Title 24 rules on alterations of existing homes that comes in effect October 1, 2005.  The work scope also provided for LIEE Standardization Team meetings to be open to the public and the Commission accepted the work scope in a June 7, 2005 ACR.  April 8 and 15 the team held workshops on the assessment of new measures.  Three new measures have been recommended for 2006/2007 one of them is duct testing and sealing, central AC and AC clean up or maintenance program.  On April 11, 2005 a presentation was made to the LIOB on new measures and proposed program changes, they’d had several team meetings since then and they have also had discussions with the CEC on the Title 24 changes to make sure that everyone understands what needs to be done to move forward.  The General Team Recommendations are: As in the January 18 report, updated the manual to reflect changes in code and the need to clarify certain procedures.  However, reconsidered all recommendations based on public comments and subsequent public input.  Added policies and procedures and installation standards for two of the measures previously recommended for 2006(high efficiency central air conditioners and duct testing and sealing); added policies and procedures enabling compliance with new Title 24 regulations on alterations.  These regulations require duct testing and sealing when furnace replacements and/or central air conditioner replacements are made.  The change in earlier recommendations made on the basis of public participation are:  maintained the characterization of furnace repairs and replacements as minor home repairs, but broadened the definition of natural gas appliance testing fails that warrant repairs or replacements of furnaces.  Also agreed to assess the cost-effectiveness of furnace repair and replacement as a measure.  Modified the changes in the 80-20% rules to continue to permit installation of some measures in units not occupied by income-eligible household.  Expanded the conditions under which homes may be revisited within the 10-year window after initial treatment.  Dropped the requirement that furnace replacements be high efficiency units.  Modified various other provisions of the P&P and WIS Manuals.  The team withdrew an earlier recommendation to add air conditioner tune-ups to the overall program pending the completion of a pilot project to assess potential problems in implementing the measure.  Mr. Ramirez asked for a recap of the timeline for the adoption of the changes in those manuals.  Ms. Thompson stated that they have the P&P and WIS manual completed, the team is finalizing the final touches based on their last meeting last week.  She mentioned that there will workshops at the end of the month specifically on September 29 it will be at SDG&E and on September 30th the Team will be in SF at PG&E Energy Center.  Once those workshops are completed, the team will take all of the comments and finish the manuals, which will be submitted on November 1, 2005 for Commission approval.  Chair Wood commented that the Board got a presentation on the changes on the manual and the Board had an opportunity to discuss it the first time but the Board has not had a chance to comment on it after some of the public hearings and some of the changes.  He inquired as to how the Board could comment on such short notice.  Mr. Ramirez clarified that the comments that are due Friday are for the new measures. Ms. Thompson was referring to the manual changes which were withdrawn based on the March ACR and they are now in the process of making changes to reflect public input. Mr. Ramirez inquired as to the timing of the manual changes, how will does this coincide with the title 24 changes which are required by October 1, 2005.  Mr. Thompson replied by saying that Title 24 is effective 1, 2005 by law their contractors are required to comply with law, and obey any local code.  She added that most of the contractors are up to speed on what they are require to do.  Commissioner Grueneich asked if this meant that at least there is a short period of time in which whatever the contractors are doing is inconsistence with the Commission approved manual.  Mr. Lawless explained that the WIS manual does not formally address Title 24 requirements today and it has never address specific laws and codes and how they are done.  He stated that it is the laws of each city and county jurisdiction that oversees the installation of the furnaces and air conditioners.  He said that what they tried to do is ensure that the WIS manual now incorporates the reference to Title 24 because it is more extensive than it has ever been in the past.  He added that this is the first time Title 24 has impacted retrofit applications as opposed to new construction.  He stated that they won’t be out of compliance with the manual; they are just following the law that is actually being pass to put in place and becomes effective October 1, 2005.  Chair Woo asked if the manual covers how the utilities operate in terms of making decisions about not only the cost effectiveness but also in terms of what might be for the health and safety and the quality of life for the low-income customers.  Mr. Lawless stated that the manual does not cover those issues, he added there is a manual called the Weather Installation Standards Manual that is a field manual to tell the installers how to install particular equipment, to the extend that there are local building codes that are more stringent than what their manual is they are supposed to follow the more stringent code. The Policy and Procedure manual which tells the utilities how to operate the program at a high level does not go into that either.  It is an operational manual, the decision on cost effectiveness; health and safety have been referred to the team via the Commission.  Chair Woo expressed his concern regarding this issue and stated that our low-income population most likely resides in older homes and more deteriorated and chances are that heating devices are probably deteriorated.  How and who determines whether to replace it or not.  He asked if the city code steps in or does the utility decide of whether or not to fix it.  Ms. Thompson responded by saying that the direction on how to replace or repair furnaces is Commission order, if the appliance fails the NGAT testing the appliance gets repair or replace.  Mr. Lawless added that what the utilities have done in working with the Commission is developed a set of protocols to determine when a furnace gets replace and when it gets repair.  The repairs are done base cost, and added that they do not want to put a lot of money into a furnace that should be replace.  If it is a relatively minor repair then the furnace gets repair.  The age of the furnace is not an issue as long as there is a properly functioning furnace, and it passes the NGAT which is their safety and does not show any signs of CO then they are ok to go.  Board Member Dayonot commented that the Standardization Team has been working very hard, and have done an excellent job with things that make sense to many people but there is some concern about how the public can stay a tune to what is going on.  Commissioner Grueneich asked if both the WIS and the P&P manual will be submitted to the PUC on November 1, 2005.  Ms. Thompson stated that both manuals will be submitted.  Commissioner Grueneich asked ALJ Weissman if there will be an opportunity for public comment, and staff review.  ALJ Weissman stated that there will be an opportunity for formal comment and it this will be reviewed by the full Commission and available for Commission decision.  He added that there is no time frame yet; he estimates that it will probably be the first quarter of next year.  Commissioner asked if there will be any problems with not having it out till the first quarter or is this something everyone has been aware of it and is ok with it.  Ms. Thompson replied by saying that they will continue to work off with their 2004 manuals until they get Commission permission, and added that the team is conducting the workshops and that the public is invited to express their comments on both the WIS and the P&P manual and they will submit all those comments to the Commission.  Commissioner Grueneich added that she is interested in having the opportunity at the Commission to hold public workshop and she is interested in any feed back.  If the Commission has these workshops would they be viewed as useful or would it be viewed as burdensome because they’ve already been so many workshops under the auspices of the Standardization Team. Mr. Ramirez commented that the Board has only been briefed only once before on something that was similarly withdrawn, there was process set up in the March ACR to solicit and incorporate public input, which is different than the Board’s oversight the activities and the projects that the Standardization Team produces.  He recommended that the Board might want to request a briefing before the November 1, 2005 filing to find out what public input was taken how its reflected in the ultimate report and similar to how Commissioner Grueneich requested an accounting of the Commission staff timing and cost associated for the boards’ activities, it might be appropriate also to request something similar from the Standardization Team in particular for this phase.  He added that the Board would benefit from getting a full briefing on everything that has transpired since the last ACR..  Chair Woo stated that the Board has not had a clear understanding as to what their relationship is with the Standardization Team, the Board has asked on various occasions but to this date there has not been any clarification.  He added that in terms of their oversight responsibilities there cannot be oversight in something the Board is not participating in.  Mr. Ramirez said that from the staff’s point of view, they are trying to align the interest of the Board which is to have proper oversight and be in a position to provide proper advice and input to the Commission, he added that perhaps the Board should request a briefing for the next LIOB meeting.  Commissioner Grueneich said that given the timing, the Board should request the briefing in writing.  Since the manuals will be file in November, the Board needs to figure out how it will provide input to the Commission.  She suggested getting something together that delineates when comments would be due, when the Commission want input and feed back from the Board.  Commissioner Grueneich also asked if there was on-going work for the Standardization Team after these manuals or is the Standardization Team done after this project.  Mr. Lawless stated that the Standardization Team sought self as ending probably within the last year at least.  They continue to get directives from the Commission that adds additional work.  The team recently recommended three new measures, out of the three one was withdrawn based on some information that was gathered in the meetings that they’ve had over the last 6 months.  They withdrew one of the measures and they have submitted it as a recommendation for a pilot.  If the Commission approves the pilot they would then report back to the Commission on the results of that pilot.  He added that the future of the Standardization Team is not known at this time, the Commission has to decide what it wants to do with the team.  Board Member Garcia asked if the P&P and WIS manuals will be available soon.  Mr. Lawless said that the manuals will be going out with tracking changes on for people to see the kind of changes.  Ms. Whiting commented that the team hoped to be done, but there are still some other pending items out of the last decision that approved the 2005 programs and budgets that were referred to the team.  Ms. Whiting also pointed out that when the WIS team was born in 1999 the purpose of the Standardization Team was to standardize the programs which at the point in time had some differences throughout the State, as time went on more issues came up in the standardization part of the work but then as issues came up that needed to be addressed they were given to the Team by the Commission.  She added that the Team has been doing what it’s been told to do and directed to do; it was never the intent for this to be an on-going, forever group.  She added that due to the Board’s restrictions on the frequency of meetings it was very hard to coordinate and there was a disconnect and they need to be brought back together.  Commissioner Grueneich suggested that the Board takes Mr. Ramirez suggestion and ask the Standardization Team to provide a written briefing so that the Board can understand it and possibly schedule a conference call.  The Board will need to figure out if or how it will give feed back to the Commission on the filings of November 1, 2005.  Commissioner Grueneich also asked the Standardization Team or the Utilities that when the manuals are filed, that they have a cover filing that identifies what is the additional work of the Standardization Team that the Commission has directed them to do, or alternatively that the Team thinks it should do, what is it and the time frame in which the team would be doing it.  At the next LIOB meeting the Board can take a look at the activities that will be occurring in 2006 and address the issue that was raised earlier as to what is the relationship between the Board and the Standardization Team.  This would give everyone a clear understanding how this Board will interact with the Team.  

Motion by Board Member Dayonot The Board asked the Commission to look at the issue of the role, responsibilities and oversight of the Standardization Committee and urge them to include all parties involved in this discussion.  Moved by Chair Woo, seconded by Vice –Chair Lopez.  Motion carried  7/0
V. LIOB Strategic Plan

Commissioner Grueneich asked Mr. Ramirez to provide a verbal summary of the recent LIOB Strategic Plan document he developed for the Board.  The Commissioner suggested that the Board review the document and provide comments or suggested changes directly to Mr. Ramirez.  Mr. Ramirez informed the Board that the report is a listing of the outstanding and upcoming items that the Commission will be engaged in.  He reminded Board Members that at the last LIOB meeting they decided to have a strategic planning sub-committee to address the projects that are outstanding and to determine which projects are of high priority for the Board.  Mr. Ramirez requested that the Board review the document and provide feed back and comments to Karen DeGannes, once those comments are received, they will be incorporated in the draft strategic planning document and staff will produce a complete report that the Board can adopt at the next LIOB meeting.  The list details the various projects with a brief description of what they are, how they came about, their current status and the list includes LIOB recommended actions, in the short-run and in the upcoming year.  Mr. Ramirez also mentioned that he took the liberty of taking a previously adopted mission statement and revised it.  The new mission statement incorporates the various Public Utility codes that govern or are otherwise relevant to the Board’s operation.  Mr. Ramirez stated that he tried to tailor a new mission statement that incorporates all of the elements of the previous mission statement.  He urged the Board to review and provide comments on the new mission statement.  The Board requested that staff keep this item on the Agenda for the next LIOB meeting.
VI. ACCESS Comments on SoCalGas’ Manual (Document Index #4)
Jim Hodges representing ACCES filed documents and comments on behalf of Maravilla and TELACU.  
Mr. Hodges said that as an interested public participant, in these comments they provided the following list of items that deserve closer scrutiny.  
1. Changes to furnace repair and replacement services made in 2004 by Southern

California Gas. 

2. Standardization Team’s proposal to re-categorize furnace and water heater repair

and replacement as a minor home repair. 

3. Standardization Team’s proposal to drop the 80% rule for income eligibility for

all measures other than ceiling insulation in common attic spaces of multi-family

buildings

4. The CBO’s proposal to install new furnaces to homes which have no heating

system. .

5. The CBO’s proposal to lift the current restrictions on rental units. 

6. The CBO’s proposal to reduce the “Previous Program Participation” restriction to 4 years from the current 10 years.

7. The CBOs proposed changes to Combustion Appliance Assessment Protocols.
Commissioner Grueneich asked if Mr. Hodges was discussing a different manual, if he was not, she asked if there were issues that did not receive public input; but if it is a different manual is ACCES concern that there are other manuals developed and use by utilities that don’t appear to have adequate public input.  Mr. Hodges responded by saying that the Statewide Policy and Procedure manuals that are the same for each utility, he added that the manual is not explicit on every point  and the utility management has the discretion to interpret things certain ways or to have procedural requirements a certain way.  Board Member Nall explained that all the utilities have the same manuals and that each utility have different procedures for things like invoices, how to put invoices together, he explained that these are items that are not part of the standardization manual or the P&P, and added that a lot of it is operational.  Mr. Hodges added that ACCES also argues that the age of furnaces should be considered in decisions to repair or replace them.  In respond Ms. Whiting explained that Mr. Hodges has made numerous filings on these issues and SCG has responded to each of them, unfortunately SCG’s response was not part of the package; however Ms. Whiting provided copies to the Board to review.  She informed the Board that the statewide manuals do not address every single daily aspect of running these programs.  To clarify she stated that there is a Statewide Policy and Procedures Manual; there is a WIS manual that addresses specific technical installation requirements.  Policy and Procedure Manual talks about the general design of the program; the requirements and a number of other things.  She went on to say that each utility then in accordance with everything in that manual will need to institute additional procedures; the utilities call it supplemental procedures to carry out what’s in the manual for the day-to-day operation.  Ms. Whiting added that it would not be practical nor would it work for anybody, the Standardization Team, the Board or the Commission to dictate those day-to-day operational requirements.  In one of the responses, it was explained that to make it simple for the contractors in the field, that they had inserted the operational procedures in the Statewide Policy & Procedures Manuals.  The specific issue that is behind all of these questions has to do with the repair and replacement of furnaces.  Ms. Whiting added that SoCalGas’ 2004 revisions to its furnace repair and replacement protocols are consistent with Commission Directives and Utility Practice and do not require further consideration by the Commission.  Chair Woo asked that if once a home has been inspected and it has had the NGAT testing done and the client calls back due with furnace concerns, does it get service again. Does the repair get repair again or how does the company make a decision to come back and deal with such issues.  Ms. Whiting stated that the current rule in the Statewide procedure is that they don’t go back.  The Team just agreed to that in case of furnaces, that they will go back for furnaces.  The details of these still needs to be addressed, but it would probably follow similar protocols as they use today.   If the furnace is not working, and is failing the NGAT test;  and if there is a real problem with the furnace then base on the protocols that currently exist then it is decided to repair again or to replace it.  Mr. Lawless addressed the concern raised by Chair Woo on repairing furnaces that have already been repaired.  He stated that the details have not been worked out yet; but added that the details will be consistent with what is working today and what goes on at the Gas Company as a general service to all customers today.  Details have to be worked out within each of the utilities as to how it going to work best.  The utilities need Commission approval to implement the change that they have brought before the Commission thru the policy change that was recommended.   The utilities are waiting for the Commission to decide on the propose policy change. Mr. Villasenor suggested coming up with at a set of standards of repair vs. replacement and look at the whole criteria not just cost alone.  Things that need to be considered are the cost, efficiency, age of the heater, health and safety issues and now the raising cost of natural gas.  Mr. Burt commented that if a contractor fixes a furnace and if that furnace fails; in his opinion that contractor should not be working in that field. Mr. Burt re-iterated a point by Ms. Whiting, that the more furnaces they replace, the fewer people they serve.  Mr. Burt pointed out that the whole program has always had fairly minor hits in any given year, if this is reduce it would greatly reduce the impact of the program on the low income population and that in his opinion is a very big reason for keeping as good a control as possible of the largest cost in the program.  Board Member Juarez supports Mr. Villasenor’s recommendation that some details standards need to be established so that the sub-contractors that are performing the work can define and make that decision on whether or not that a particular unit needs to be repair or replace.    The changes that have been made have added a lot of layers to providing services to low-income.  She added that there are two major responsibilities to take in consideration for the low-income customers, one is to use the money wisely and number two, to provide services to as many low-income people as possible, but it has to be quality service. 
VII. Rapid Deployment Summary
Summary of Low Income Rapid Deployment measures based on monthly reports (Document Index #5)
Informational Item Only.  Mr. Ramirez informed the Board that staff has begun looking at how this is reported.  He mentioned that for the next LIOB meeting, staff is proposing to revise the table to make it a little more clearly and maybe provide some graphs.  He mentioned that the report is a summary of both the expenditures year to date and the enrollments as well.  Commissioner Grueneich asked for a more elaborate explanation regarding rapid deployment.  Mr. Ramirez explained that the report is a summary of what the utilities file monthly with the Commission and is pursuant to a previous Commission decision that required them to do so.  Mr. Ramirez added that the rapid deployment name comes from an effort that the Commission engaged back in 2001 during the energy crisis where it sought to deploy a lot of new measures and it got some funding thru the Legislation.  As part of this, there was a requirement to do reporting to ensure that the money was well spent and that we were reaching the targeted levels.  The summary provides a summary of the statewide level by each of the utilities and rather than going thru what each utility files, we compile it into a 2 page summary both for CARE and LIEE.  Mr. Ramirez also mentioned that the Commission has a stated policy on the CARE side to reach 100% of eligible customers who are willing to participate, so this is an effort to try seeing how close we are getting on an on-going forward basis.  Board Member Dayonot added that he has always had a strong interest in CARE enrollment.  He mentioned that when he first joined the Board and they discussed penetration rates and the need for CARE auto enrollment, PG&E was in the high 50’s, their recent report shows 72%, which is an extraordinary improvement.  PG&E has made major efforts to increase their penetration rates and they should be congratulated for all of their efforts.  The others were always around the 70’s except for SCE who has had larger percentages.  Board Member Dayonot mentioned that even with an average of about 70% penetration, there is an estimated 800,000 families who are eligible who are not signed up and if you multiple that by the 3 person average per family there are about 2.4 million people that can still benefit from it.  We hope that the efforts by the Legislature will increase that effort.  He mentioned that SB580 passed out at the Senate, urges the Department of Health and Human Services to cooperate with the CPUC in getting auto enrollment in progress.  He mentioned that Community Services and Development initiated an effort to start auto enrollment in the LIHEAP programs.  The last report showed that there were 30,000 enrollees.
VIII. 06/07 Low Income Budget Applications

a. Presentation by large IOUs on 06/07 Low Income Budget Applications

b. Public Input and Discussion on IOU Applications

c. LIOB Comments on Applications
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NOTE:  Due to the size of this transcript we were not able to provide hard copies at the LIOB meeting on December 2, 2005, however, parties interested in receiving an electronic copy may do so by contacting Zaida Amaya zca@cpuc.ca.gov or Terrie Tannehill tjt@cpuc.ca.gov
d. Other Considerations

i. Go-Backs

ii. HVAC Tune-Up

iii. Comprehensive Flexibility

These items were part of the discussion in Item VI
IX. Status of Low Income Projects

This Item was part of the discussion in Item V
X. Recent CPUC Orders

a. Review of CPUC Orders

No items to review
b. Discussion of pending CPUC orders and potential comments on Draft CPUC Orders

No items to discuss
XI. New Business and Agenda Planning for Future Meetings

The Board discussed the possibility of having a meeting in October.  Commissioner Grueneich suggested having a teleconference meeting to discuss specifically the two manuals that will be filed and to gather any LIOB input to the Commission.  Mr. Ramirez commented that staff will produce a document for the Board to approve, this process requires two meetings, one to get the Board’s feed back and input and the second one to adopt the document.  Mr. Ramirez pointed out that there are a couple of things that are coming out which the Board may want to provide input or comments to.  One is the manuals and the second one is the 2006/2007 low income project applications.  He informed the Board that they are welcome to provide comments on the applications themselves, but reminded them that they can use this afternoon’s public participation hearing as a way to provide their comments to the Commission.  The Board however, is urged to provide comments on the proposed decision that will come out later this year.  ALJ Weissman reiterated that today’s PPH will have the Board’s comments on record and that their comments will be use to provide general comments from the Board.  ALJ Weissman will be utilizing the transcript in the record for the low-income proceeding.  Commissioner Grueneich will work together with ALJ Weissman to determined an approximately date of the decision and to try to give the Board enough time for them to schedule conferences so they can provide feed back and comments.  The Board agreed to target the months of January, March, May and July 2006 for future LIOB meetings.  Staff will survey the Board with specific dates and determined the best dates to meet.  
Board Member Dayonot commented that before this meeting the Board had been scheduled to meet, however, Mr. Ramirez sent an e-mail informing the Board that the Administration indicated that the meeting had to be cancelled.  Mr. Dayonot expressed his disapproval with this decision, because he didn’t think that it was the authority of the staff to cancel meetings.  Board Member Dayonot added that the LIOB is an independent body of the CPUC, supported by staff.  He mentioned that the LIOB chair has the authority to cancel meetings not staff. Mr. Gallagher responded by saying that staff is directed by statue to support the LIOB, he added that during the time the meeting was schedule Energy Division was not able to provide the support they thought was necessary to support the Board.  It was never the intent of staff to cancel the meeting; the intent was to move the meeting back slightly in order to do the job that staff is required to do.  
Board Member Dayonot took this opportunity to inform the Board that he will continue teaching negotiations at the Haas MBA program at U.C. Berkeley and he has started teaching negotiations at U.C. Berkeley's Goldman School of Public Policy as well.  He advice this body that if SB 580 is signed by the Governor, to take very seriously what they would want to do to encourage the appropriate state entities,  to move forward with implementing the balance of CARE auto enrollment.  The last thing he recommended to the Board is to look at resources other than the utilities that are regulated by the CPUC, in particular the propane industry.  He suggested that this body explore and discuss with other industries how they may want to contribute to low-income programs.  Chair Woo took this opportunity to reiterate on behalf of the Board how much the Board appreciates his participation on the LIOB and wished him good luck with his new endeavor.
XII. Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 5:00pm
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       1   LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA; THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2005



       2                         1:42 P.M.



       3



       4          ALJ WEISSMAN:  All right.  Let's come to



       5   order.  Commission will be in order.  Welcome,



       6   everybody.



       7                  We now are moving into an interesting



       8   hybrid phase of the Low Income Oversight Board



       9   meeting, which started this morning at 10:00 o'clock.



      10   We're now continuing the meeting.  But we're adding



      11   to that what we refer to as a "Public Participation



      12   Hearing" and the Commission's low income proceeding,



      13   which is rulemaking 04-01-006.



      14                  And I'll turn the mike back over to



      15   Mr. Woo.  And then I'll explain a little bit more,



      16   after that, how we're going to function this



      17   afternoon.



      18          MR. WOO:  I want to welcome everyone back,



      19   and -- and I appreciate your indulgence in allowing



      20   us to start a little late 'cause our early morning



      21   session lasted a little longer.



      22                  But it was a very exciting meeting



      23   'cause I think it demonstrates "What is the purpose



      24   of the Low Income Oversight Board?"  And that's



      25   public participation and ability to discuss issues
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       1   and -- and hear from all sides, from the utility



       2   company and contractors and the public.



       3                  In regards to this meeting, I hope



       4   that those of you who are attending, Number 1, do



       5   sign in so we do recognize that you are here; and,



       6   Number 2, if you're going to make some comments, this



       7   is the time.  And there's a microphone there, from



       8   which you can speak from, because it is difficult for



       9   us to hear you when you're in the audience and to



      10   please identify yourself for the record.



      11                  On behalf of the LIOB Board, I'd like



      12   to welcome Administrative Judge Steve for allowing us



      13   the opportunity to have this and be part of the



      14   record of the Commission.  So I'm going to turn this



      15   back over to Steve.  And we're going to both try to



      16   wing this public hearing together.



      17                  And, please, you must sign up on the



      18   sheet if you're going to be speaking.



      19          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.



      20                  My name is Steve Weissman.  I'm an



      21   administrative law judge for the California Public



      22   Utilities Commission.  And one of my responsibilities



      23   is to preside over the low-income rulemaking



      24   proceeding and all of the requests for funding and



      25   program approval that are -- are consolidated with
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       1   that proceeding.



       2                  And also on the dais this morning --



       3   actually we're in the afternoon now -- this afternoon



       4   is Commissioner Dian Grueneich, who is the assigned



       5   Commissioner who oversees the low-income programs.



       6          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  I just wanted to say



       7   that I'm very pleased to be here; that I was



       8   appointed by the Commissioner, in January of this



       9   year, to the Public Utilities Commission; and I've



      10   had a long-standing interest in both energy



      11   efficiency and low-income issues.



      12                  And so I specifically did ask to be



      13   assigned to this matter because I consider it to be



      14   critical -- how the State is developing its policies



      15   and implementing its programs and providing funding



      16   in the area of low-income electric and gas rates.



      17                  So I want to say, "I'm here to listen,



      18   both to any presentations from the utilities about



      19   their applications as well as to hear comments from



      20   the public."  I'm very pleased to have this



      21   opportunity to join all of you.



      22          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.



      23                  A little bit more about -- about



      24   Public Participation Hearing.  The Commission uses



      25   that term to try to distinguish this process from the
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       1   more -- perhaps more rigorous evidentiary hearings



       2   that are sometimes held in proceedings.  In those



       3   instances, witnesses are sworn in.  They're



       4   cross-examined.  And we're developing a formal



       5   factual record.



       6                  And here what we want to do is provide



       7   an opportunity for people to offer their opinions and



       8   advice on matters pending before the Commission



       9   without being sworn in, without having cross-



      10   examination.



      11                  We specifically wanted to hold this



      12   particular Public Participation Hearing in concert



      13   with the LIOB meeting so that we could not only hear



      14   from members of the public about the proposed



      15   program-funding levels for the major energy utilities



      16   in the state for the low-income programs for the next



      17   two years but, in addition to that, we wanted to have



      18   an opportunity for the Board not only to hear these



      19   presentations that we're going to have from the



      20   utilities but also have an opportunity to comment on



      21   the record themselves so that we can benefit from



      22   everybody's advice in reviewing these applications.



      23                  I do want to emphasize that there is a



      24   court reporter taking everything down.  So people



      25   need to be a little mindful of that.  I'm reminding
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       1   myself more than everybody else, probably, to put



       2   some pauses in and not speak as quickly as I might



       3   otherwise.



       4                  What I'm going to suggest, in terms of



       5   a format for this afternoon, would be for us to start



       6   with direct presentations from each of the applicant



       7   utilities concerning their programs and their



       8   proposed changes to the programs and funding levels



       9   for the next two years.



      10                  During that process, I would encourage



      11   anybody up here who has -- anybody on the dais who



      12   has questions to interject those questions at any



      13   point you want to or to -- if you want to hold



      14   questions until the end of a specific presentation,



      15   there will be time at that point to ask those



      16   questions.  I may ask -- may be asking some myself.



      17                  And after we've heard all the



      18   presentations and had questions from the Board, at



      19   that point, hopefully, those who have signed up to



      20   speak will have had a full exposure to the issues



      21   that are before the Commission in these applications.



      22   And that would be a great time to have public



      23   comment.



      24                  So anybody that's interested in



      25   participating in that part of the proceedings should
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       1   make sure to sign up on the -- on the speakers' list.



       2   Then we'll have -- we'll hear from -- from everybody



       3   who wants to speak.



       4                  There will be some type of a time



       5   limit, probably be in the neighborhood of about



       6   three -- three to five minutes.  But I'll let you



       7   know specifically when I see how many people there



       8   are.



       9                  And, then, after we finish the public-



      10   comment portion, then I'm hoping that the Members of



      11   the Board at that point will take whatever time they



      12   want to -- to offer their feedback, on what they've



      13   heard in the applications, not only reactions to what



      14   they've heard but questions that they see coming up



      15   from hearing the presentations from the utilities and



      16   from hearing the public speakers, things that they



      17   think we need to -- we, as a commission, need to



      18   explore further before we pass judgment on these



      19   applications; and the more advice, the better.



      20                  I want to emphasize that -- that



      21   the -- I think, for my purposes, the most beneficial



      22   part of this morning's presentation was really the



      23   last half hour, when there was some give and take



      24   and -- and in-depth explorations of a couple of



      25   particular issues.
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       1                  What I think the Commission would be



       2   hoping for would be, after that kind of investigation



       3   by the Board, for the Board to give the Commission



       4   its advice on those issues, specifically, so that



       5   we've got some information and consultation to go on



       6   to try to resolve the particular problem.



       7                  These applications don't tend to be



       8   heavily contested.  There don't tend to be a number



       9   of other parties filing testimony or wanting to



      10   cross-examine utility witnesses the way it happens in



      11   some Commission proceedings.  So I think it's all the



      12   more important for the Commission to have the advice



      13   of the Board in trying to consider these



      14   applications.



      15                  So with that, let's -- let's move



      16   forward and hopefully each of the utilities is



      17   prepared.  There's no magic to the order.  Let's just



      18   do things alphabetically.  Start with PG&E?



      19                  And for each of you, when you do



      20   present or speak, please do identify yourself for the



      21   benefit of the court reporter.  And if there's



      22   anything tricky about the spelling of your name, let



      23   us know that too.



      24          MS. O'DRAIN:  Okay.  Frances and Linda are



      25   passing out presentations to those of you folks in
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       1   the audience.  Can you hear me?



       2                  Okay.  Good afternoon.  My name is



       3   Mary O'Drain.  And I'm here to present PG&E's low-



       4   income program applications.



       5                  I'm going to start -- well, first of



       6   all, let me tell you what we're going to be talking



       7   about.  I've going to give you an overview of the two



       8   programs -- the Low Income Energy Efficiency program



       9   and the CARE Rate Discount Program.



      10                  Our application was filed on June 1,



      11   2005.  All of the utilities filed on that date in



      12   compliance with the CPUC decision O5-04-052.  And we



      13   filed our application for Program Years 2006 and



      14   2007.



      15                  I'm going to start with the LIEE



      16   program background.  PG&E's LIEE program -- also



      17   called within the utility, "Energy Partners



      18   Program" -- helps low-income customers reduce their



      19   energy consumption and costs while increasing their



      20   comfort, health, and safety.



      21                  Through the program, we provide free



      22   home weatherization, energy-efficiency appliances,



      23   and energy-education services to qualified low-income



      24   customers.  Based on the -- the -- the income



      25   guidelines are based on the current CARE income







                                                             11

�





       1   guidelines, which are 175 percent of the federal



       2   poverty-level guidelines, with income adjustments for



       3   household size, or 200 percent of federal poverty-



       4   level guidelines for senior and disabled customers.



       5                  PG&E program highlights in 2004:  PG&E



       6   provided free energy-efficiency measures and services



       7   to over 48,000 qualifying low-income customer homes.



       8   Since 1983, we've -- we've treated over 800,000



       9   homes.  Customers have saved over $355 million on



      10   their energy bills.  And we've achieved total impacts



      11   of over 265,000 megawatt hours and 35 million therms.



      12                  Okay.  To go over the Program Year



      13   2006 and -7 applications, PG&E has requested no



      14   changes from our 2005 LIEE program or budget.  In



      15   2005, our authorized budget was $56.530 million.  And



      16   that's the same budget we've requested for each



      17   year -- 2006 and 2007.



      18                  For -- okay.  The elements of the



      19   program:  PG&E has proposed to continue offering the



      20   same measures that were approved for 2005.  The



      21   standardization team had submitted a list of several



      22   2006 proposed measures.  We have not yet heard --



      23   those haven't been approved or authorized yet.



      24                  At such a time as those measures are



      25   approved or authorized, they would be added into
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       1   our -- into our budget.  We would not be requesting a



       2   change to the budget.  We would just reallocate



       3   funding within the program to accommodate the



       4   proposed new measures.



       5                  Those measures that were proposed by



       6   the Standardization Team are high-efficiency air



       7   conditioners, central air conditioner and heat pump



       8   maintenance -- that one is now being proposed as a



       9   pilot -- and duct testing and sealing.



      10                  An overview of the program elements:



      11   This is a list of the current measures that are



      12   offered under the 2005 program.  And also for -- I



      13   passed out the handouts.  I know some of this is hard



      14   to see.



      15                  And just to give you a preview,



      16   there's a couple of tables later on.  And I believe



      17   that we passed out bigger versions of those tables so



      18   you're not going to have to strain your eyes to read



      19   them 'cause they're pretty difficult to read.



      20                  Okay.  In our 2006-to-7 application



      21   for the LIEE program, we -- besides discussing our



      22   budget, we also talked about three particular issues



      23   to PG&E.  Those issues were providing infiltration



      24   measures to homes with non-utility-fueled combustion



      25   appliances.  In general, that's usually propane
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       1   appliances.



       2                  PG&E and all the utilities treat homes



       3   with infiltration measures if they are heated by our



       4   fuel source.  So electrically heated homes, in our



       5   case, would -- and gas-heated homes as well.



       6                  But in the case of electric-heated



       7   homes, where they're not receiving gas service from



       8   us -- they might have a propane water heater in their



       9   home -- but because they're receiving electric space



      10   heating, they would qualify for infiltration measures



      11   under PG&E's program.



      12                  In the past, PG&E conducted a



      13   combustion appliance-safety test on those particular



      14   homes.  And if the home was considered -- if all the



      15   appliances passed the safety test and they received



      16   electric space heating from us, they could receive



      17   infiltration measures.



      18                  Recently, the Standardization Team has



      19   looked at that issue.  And it was decided -- well,



      20   when we -- when the team looked at the new NGAT



      21   test -- that's National Gas Appliance Test -- we, at



      22   PG&E, had raised the issue of "What about customers



      23   that receive electric space heating?"  They would



      24   normally qualify for the infiltration measures.



      25                  At that time -- that was in, I
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       1   believe, 2001 -- PG&E was told to continue providing



       2   the "CAS" test that we'd been providing all along to



       3   those homes that had propane.  It's not a difficult



       4   test to perform.  But under NGAT, we would not



       5   normally be testing propane appliances.  So since



       6   2001, we've continued to perform the CAS test in



       7   addition to the NGAT test.  And if the electrically



       8   heated home qualifies and passes the test, we've been



       9   providing infiltration measures.



      10                  In, I believe it was February of last



      11   year -- so it would be February of 2004 -- the



      12   Standardization Team had been ordered to look at that



      13   issue and to make a recommendation on how those



      14   utility electrically heated homes with other



      15   combustion appliances would be treated.



      16                  The Team looked at that, filed a



      17   report, made a recommendation.  And at this time,



      18   we're still waiting for the Commission to take action



      19   one way or the other on that.



      20                  What the Standardization Team



      21   recommended was that the utility -- in this case,



      22   PG&E, and which was ordered to continue CAS



      23   testing -- should no longer do testing on propane



      24   homes -- on homes with propane appliances and should



      25   work with the local LIHEAP agencies that can do that
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       1   testing on propane, work with them to leverage our



       2   funds with theirs to make sure that the customers



       3   that would have been eligible for infiltration



       4   measures under our program could receive them under



       5   the LIHEAP program.



       6                  We're ready to do that whenever the



       7   Commission tells us that that's the way they want to



       8   go.  At this time, we're still providing measures and



       9   providing the CAS tests.  So that's basically that.



      10   We would like resolution on that matter.



      11                  One of the other issues for PG&E has



      12   been "go-backs."  That's an issue that's also come up



      13   in the Standardization Team.  So I'm not going to



      14   talk about it too much specifically here.



      15                  But PG&E had requested a -- there's a



      16   10-year time limit, after you treat a home, to go



      17   back to.  This morning, we discussed a little bit how



      18   we've changed that or we're proposing to change that



      19   for furnaces and to go back, as necessary, on



      20   furnaces.



      21                  During 2001, during the energy crisis,



      22   the utilities -- the -- the push was -- to install



      23   measures that helped save energy was one of our



      24   criteria back then.  And to help achieve that, the



      25   utilities were told to go back to homes that had been
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       1   previously treated and see if those customers needed



       2   and qualified for some of the measures -- the new



       3   measures that had not previously been offered.



       4                  So some of those measures --



       5   refrigerators to renters was one of the measures.



       6   PG&E went back and actually contacted all of the



       7   customers that it had in its records and installed



       8   refrigerators where appropriate and the other



       9   measures.



      10                  Many of those measures that were



      11   implemented in 2001 are no longer part of the



      12   program.  But at this time, the go-back issue of



      13   whether or not you can go back to a customer, within



      14   the 10-year time limit, is still an open issue.



      15                  PG&E would like that addressed, one



      16   way or the other, because it's -- one reason is that



      17   it's a difficult bookkeeping -- bookkeeping thing.



      18   "When does the 10-year period start?"  And we are



      19   quite willing to discuss some clarification on that



      20   issue.



      21                  Decision 05-04-052 referred the



      22   go-back issue back to the Standardization Team's



      23   public process for further study.  So that is one of



      24   the issues that's still before the Standardization



      25   Team.  And we'd be quite willing to work with the
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       1   Team or any other group that is going to look at this



       2   further.



       3                  The third issue we discussed -- and



       4   I'm only going to touch on this for a minute -- is



       5   the new Title 24 duct-testing requirements.  We



       6   discussed that a little bit this morning.



       7                  When we completed our application and



       8   turned it in, in June -- at PG&E, we weren't quite



       9   sure how this was going to affect the program.  We



      10   thought it might be very costly and add extra visits.



      11                  We've been looking at it quite a bit



      12   with the Standardization Team and through public



      13   process in the last several months and are much more



      14   comfortable with it -- with its impact on the



      15   program.  And we're ready to start the duct-sealing



      16   requirements, as necessary, through code that become



      17   effective on October 1.  So this isn't quite so much



      18   of an issue anymore.



      19                  I've attached to the presentation --



      20   and this is where you have the bigger tables; at



      21   least, some of you do -- each of the utilities did



      22   five attachments -- three for the Low Income Energy



      23   Efficiency Program and two for CARE.  They're the



      24   same attachments for each utility so that they're



      25   somewhat comparable.
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       1                  PG&E's three attach -- well, the



       2   attachments follow.  They're -- they compare measure



       3   units, energy-and-demand savings, and cost



       4   categories -- electric and gas.  I just have



       5   "electric" here.  That's an error.  So I know it's



       6   difficult to see.



       7                  The bottom line is PG&E's estimated



       8   number of homes that it would treat is 45,000 under



       9   the 56-and-a-half- million-dollar budget.



      10                  It shows the estimate for -- it



      11   compares the 2006 and -7 estimates with 2005 and



      12   shows year through date -- and that's back in April,



      13   when the program was just starting; so there's not



      14   much to show there -- and what we did in 2004.



      15                  One of the reasons that the 2005



      16   estimate number of homes treated at that same budget



      17   with the same measures is a little bit higher is



      18   because PG&E has carryover.  And we knew how much



      19   carryover we had when we were doing this.



      20                  And so we believed we could treat



      21   55,000 homes.  We're on target to do that.  And we're



      22   also on target to continue spending down the



      23   carryover.  But the 45,000 homes for 2006-and-7



      24   estimations would not include carryover spending.  So



      25   that number would go up, depending on how much we
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       1   could dig down into our carryover.



       2                  At this time we anticipate spending



       3   down all of the carryover we've accumulated probably



       4   by 2008.



       5                  Is that right?



       6                  Just wanted to check that,



       7   double-check that.



       8          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Could you explain the -- as



       9   you've used it on the chart -- difference between



      10   "treated homes" and "weatherized homes"?



      11          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes.  "Treated home" is "every



      12   home that we touch under the program."  Every home



      13   that we go and gets an education or any measure or



      14   weatherization is considered "treated."  So that's



      15   the big number of every home we touch.



      16                  Weather a -- a weatherized home is a



      17   subset of treated homes.  And those are homes that



      18   receive -- those are treated homes that receive



      19   specific weatherization measures.  So that number



      20   would always be smaller than the number of treated



      21   homes.



      22                  The weatherization measures -- it's



      23   based on the "Big Six," which is ancient terminology



      24   in low income from way back in the 1990's or perhaps



      25   the 1980's.  And those are the --
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       1          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  '83.



       2          MS. O'DRAIN:  '83.  That sounds about right.



       3                  So that -- that those six basic



       4   measures that we were required to implement dating



       5   back that far -- and I believe that was by



       6   legislation; they're also similar to the measures



       7   that the LIHEAP homes receive so that they're the --



       8   they're six basic measures that include -- I'm going



       9   to get them wrong -- ceiling --



      10          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  -- insulation --



      11                  You'll have to repeat it 'cause I'm



      12   not on the mike.



      13          MS. O'DRAIN:  Okay.  Attic insulation.



      14          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  "Door" weather



      15   stripping --



      16          MS. O'DRAIN:  "Door" weather stripping --



      17          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  -- caulking --



      18          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- caulking, low-flow



      19   showerheads --



      20          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  -- minor home repair --



      21          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- minor home repair and water



      22   heater wrap.



      23          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  No.  Water heater --



      24          MS. O'DRAIN:  Water heater "blanket wraps."



      25   Yeah.  I think that's all six of 'em.  And those are







                                                             21

�





       1   the "Big Six."



       2                  I think -- and I could be wrong about



       3   on this -- but I believe when we're talking about a



       4   "weatherized home," we're specifically talking about



       5   weatherization measures which may also include



       6   several other infiltration-type measures that were



       7   not part of the Big Six.



       8                  I've seen that definition.  I believe



       9   it's defined in O1-05-033 and a couple of other



      10   decisions that specifically says what a "treated



      11   home" is and what a "weatherized home" is.



      12          ALJ WEISSMAN:  And the reason that the number



      13   of weatherized homes will always be smaller is that



      14   some homes are already weatherized?



      15          MS. O'DRAIN:  Some homes don't require



      16   weatherization.  For instance, a home that does not



      17   receive heat from PG&E would not require -- would not



      18   be qualified for infiltration measures from PG&E.  So



      19   there are certain measures it wouldn't be getting.



      20                  Other homes may have -- it may be a



      21   weatherized home already.  It might not need



      22   infiltration measures but -- and it doesn't need a



      23   new showerhead.  I mean it may have all the measures



      24   already; or for some reason, it just doesn't qualify



      25   for those measures.  Either it doesn't need them,
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       1   or --



       2          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  It's a refrigerator,



       3   education --



       4          MS. O'DRAIN:  That's true.  We -- a home needs



       5   a minimum number of measures to be part of the



       6   program.  So it needs three measures or one big



       7   measure, being "refrigerator."  And I think that --



       8                  Is the refrigerator the only



       9   standalone?



      10                  Or attic insulation.  That's correct.



      11   So some homes may only receive a refrigerator and an



      12   energy education.  Every home is going to be energy



      13   educated.  So that's sort of a -- a basic measure



      14   that all homes receive.



      15                  But -- but a home that only needs a



      16   refrigerator would not be "considerised" -- would not



      17   be considered a weatherized home because it didn't



      18   receive any weatherization measures.



      19                  So does that kind of answer your



      20   question?



      21          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Yes.



      22                  And what portion of the 56-and-a-half-



      23   million dollars that's dedicated to LIEE programs --



      24   what portion of that is for non-overhead -- for



      25   actual program implementation?
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       1          MS. O'DRAIN:  That is -- I think we've --



       2   the -- the -- the cost category comparison shows how



       3   we have allocated the funding -- the 56 million, in



       4   this case -- across cost categories.  So by measures,



       5   it shows our costs for "M and E," regulatory



       6   compliance, admin so that that's the cost breakdown



       7   right there.



       8          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Well, can you -- can you offer



       9   us an average amount of money per treated household



      10   that -- that's reflected in your program?



      11          MS. O'DRAIN:  Do -- do you know?



      12          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  I'm sorry?



      13          MS. O'DRAIN:  Cost per treated household.



      14          ALJ WEISSMAN:  And this is -- in other words,



      15   eliminate the -- eliminate the overhead cost.  Tell



      16   me how much you're spending, on average, per



      17   household.



      18          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Not including -- so not



      19   including refrigerators, would be about "five fifty."



      20          THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry.  What's your name?



      21          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  I'm "Frances" from



      22   PG&E.



      23          THE REPORTER:  Thank you.



      24          MR. WOO:  That's $550 per house?



      25          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Right.
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       1          MS. O'DRAIN:  Average cost --



       2          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Not including --



       3          MS. O'DRAIN:  Not including --



       4          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  -- refrigerators.



       5          MS. O'DRAIN:  Not including homes that would



       6   receive a refrigerator.  Refrigerators are about an



       7   extra $750, including recycling.



       8          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Can you give us a sense that --



       9   that's an average?



      10          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes.



      11          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Do you have a sense of what you



      12   have on the low end and what you have on the high



      13   end?



      14          MS. O'DRAIN:  High end -- a home -- if a home



      15   were to require a furnace, furnaces run $2,000?



      16          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Could be anywhere from



      17   probably $300 to $5,000, depending on -- if you're



      18   lucky enough to get all the measures in the house and



      19   the furnace and, you know, full -- full arrangement



      20   of minor home repair and every single measure we can



      21   offer you, it could be as high as, you know, 5,000.



      22                  I think the highest I've actually



      23   seen, though, has been about $4,200.



      24          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.



      25          MR. WOO:  I have a question regarding the
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       1   budget.  You're requesting, as I understand by your



       2   presentations, the same amount that was advocated in



       3   2005.  And then you also mentioned carryover.  So



       4   that the $56 million includes the carryover?



       5          MS. O'DRAIN:  No.  That doesn't include



       6   carryover.



       7          MR. WOO:  It does not include that?



       8          MS. O'DRAIN:  We're requesting the same budget



       9   that was authorized since 2001, but we had carryover



      10   at that time.  And we've been eating away at it for



      11   the last couple years.  And like I say, we expect to



      12   have spent down the carryover by 2008.  And the



      13   carryover's not included in the 56.



      14                  So every year, we're spending several



      15   million dollars over the 56.  I believe this year



      16   we're on target to spend about 60 to 62 million.



      17          MR. WOO:  Correct.  And the carryover occurred



      18   during the time when you were trying to adjust things



      19   because of the economy and some other things; right?



      20          MS. O'DRAIN:  Carryover occurred for a lot of



      21   reasons --



      22          MR. WOO:  Correct.



      23          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- even before --



      24          MR. WOO:  But the --



      25          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- I was there.
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       1          MR. WOO:  Right.



       2          MS. O'DRAIN:  But --



       3          MR. WOO:  But before that time --



       4                  We're not being nosy here.  And now



       5   you've got caught up, and your penetration rate has



       6   shown that you've made the effort.  But if -- how



       7   much is in that carryover?  And how does a plan of



       8   that and your current budget come together?  I'm just



       9   trying to understand that.



      10          MS. O'DRAIN:  Carryover is about -- well, here



      11   it shows that the two -- in the 2005 proposed budget,



      12   it shows a total of about $74 million.  So that



      13   includes carryover.  So with 56-and-a-half million,



      14   you're talking -- what's that? -- about 20 -- 18.



      15                  And it's been -- let's see -- we've



      16   been spending several million -- we're basically just



      17   getting caught up, where we're actually digging into



      18   the carryover, really, in the last year or so.  So



      19   we've been carrying it over every year and trying to



      20   get the program flying smoothly.



      21                  We've made adjustments to our database



      22   and our arrangements with contractors so that the



      23   program is running much more smoothly and we're



      24   actually digging into the carryover.



      25                  How it affects the program?  Obviously
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       1   it means we are going to be spending more money than



       2   that 56.  We would basically be allocating over each



       3   year; so we'd be hoping to do more like -- based on



       4   the current mix of 2005 measures, we hope to do



       5   similar to what we think we're going to do this



       6   year -- about 55,000 homes; next year, as well.



       7                  And although this shows only -- in our



       8   application, we only showed the authorized budget,



       9   because we really didn't have a handle on, at that



      10   time of the year, how much money we'd be spending



      11   every year.



      12                  We anticipate -- well, we don't



      13   "anticipate."  We will -- in our monthly tracking,



      14   you can see how we're spending the money.  And also



      15   annually, when we do our annual report -- it shows



      16   the entire budget.



      17                  And at any time, if the Commission



      18   wanted us to -- especially as we get towards the end



      19   of the year, we have a better handle on how much



      20   money has been spent, how much we've dug into the



      21   carryover -- we can give you better estimates of how



      22   many homes we're treating because we know how much



      23   money we've got.



      24                  At the beginning of the year, we



      25   estimate how much we're going to do.  So we could
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       1   probably make some guesses when we turned in this



       2   application.  But we were discussing the authorized



       3   budget, and we didn't discuss carryover.  And we



       4   could certainly talk about that and give you



       5   proposals that include the carryover.



       6          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  I will say I feel



       7   like I'm looking at apples and oranges because it



       8   seems to me we should have either everything -- '05,



       9   '06, 'O7 -- with the carryover or everything without



      10   the carryover.  And I can't personally make a



      11   comparison of either cost or what are to be the



      12   results if we've got the carryover in '05 --



      13          MS. O'DRAIN:  Again --



      14          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  -- but not in '06 and



      15   '07.  So I'm going to leave it to our judge.  But I



      16   personally am looking at apples and oranges.



      17                  But if you can at least give for us



      18   what the amount of carryover for '05 that you expect



      19   to be using -- you said it's about 18 million?



      20          MS. O'DRAIN:  You mean how much we're



      21   spending -- you mean how much we think we're going to



      22   be spending --



      23          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  Yes.



      24          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- in carryover in 2005?



      25          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  In '05.  It sounds
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       1   like it's about 18 million.



       2          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  We anticipate to spend



       3   between four and "6,000" of the 17 million carryover.



       4          MS. O'DRAIN:  You mean 4 to 6 million.



       5          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Well -- I'm sorry --



       6          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  4 to 6 million.



       7          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  -- 4 to 6 million.



       8          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  And, then, what is



       9   your best estimate of what you would anticipate to



      10   spend in '06 of the carryover?



      11          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  I would hope it would



      12   be even more.  It would depend on the duct testing



      13   and sealing.  That's a big measure, and it's a



      14   big-cost measure.  So if we can do a lot of those



      15   homes, you know, a lot of that -- a lot of that



      16   measure next year, it increases more --



      17          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  No.  I need a number.



      18   I mean we've got to make -- in my mind, the



      19   Commission -- I'll be very honest.  What I'm looking



      20   at -- you're asking for authorization for additional



      21   funds to be spent in '06 and '07.  You've already got



      22   some authorized funds.



      23                  In order for me to feel like I can



      24   make a reasonable decision about what should be your



      25   level of expenditures for 'O6 and 'O7, I need to know
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       1   "What is your plan level of expenditures from the



       2   already authorized funds for both '06 and '07?"



       3                  I mean it seems to me it's just basic



       4   that we would --



       5          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Right.



       6          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  -- get some



       7   information about this remaining carryover -- what



       8   part you're planning on spending this year, what part



       9   you're planning on spending in '06, and what part



      10   you're planning on spending in '07.



      11          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Would it be all right



      12   if --



      13          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  So I'll just say, if



      14   you don't have it, I'd like to get it.



      15          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Would it be all right



      16   if I got back to you?



      17          MS. O'DRAIN:  We can provide you --



      18          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  I would rather not talk



      19   off the top of my head on it --



      20          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  That's --



      21          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  -- but give you more



      22   accurate --



      23          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  That's fine.



      24          MS. O'DRAIN:  But, yes, we can definitely



      25   figure that out for you.  And we'll -- we'll get back
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       1   to you --



       2          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  And I guess --



       3          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- soon.



       4          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  -- let me just also



       5   say, if the combination of what you're requesting and



       6   the carryover is less than what you're spending in



       7   '05, it seems to me that we're going to want to know



       8   why.



       9                  In other words, the Commission has



      10   energy efficiency as Number 1 in its loading order.



      11   I have a very strong personal commitment to energy



      12   efficiency.  It may be that, you know, you're



      13   expending all that there is to get, but we're very



      14   concerned about low-income area.



      15                  So if we're seeing an overall drop



      16   when you put together what is being requested and



      17   what's the carryover, you're really going to have to



      18   let us know why that would be the case and why you



      19   wouldn't, in fact, be asking for some incremental



      20   addition in the base authorization, as I think of it,



      21   to match what you're spending in '05.



      22          MR. WOO:  Okay.  And along the line of doing



      23   apples and oranges -- and maybe just because I like



      24   chop suey, where you have all these different



      25   ingredients and they're kind of put together and they
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       1   become one dish -- I was wondering, 'cause I've been



       2   looking at -- on Page 20, where you talk about the



       3   automatic enrollment -- and I'm applauding you for



       4   working with CSD in term of automatically enrolling



       5   those programs that come to you or through CSD, which



       6   is the administrator for the low-income -- the



       7   antipoverty funds.



       8                  And then it says that you receive 231



       9   there and 191 LIHEAP participants but there is -- but



      10   this assessment match in around 25,000 and on the



      11   scale of 1 to 7.



      12                  And I was wondering, in relationship



      13   to your asking for the same flat level of spending



      14   and you have carryover and then the level that you



      15   are spending out or you're requiring LIHEAP dollars



      16   to come in and CARE dollars being used, you know --



      17   I'm just trying to figure out, you know, how -- how's



      18   this whole picture, in term of some of these policies



      19   that are not working -- and it would help for me to



      20   understand the relationship of when you used private



      21   dollars that you have from the ratepayers.



      22                  And then when do you leverage or how



      23   do you utilize the LIHEAP dollars, as well, in terms



      24   of number?  And then how -- those total numbers that



      25   are served in low-income community gives a picture of
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       1   whether we are doing the best that we can, with all



       2   the resources that we have at a time when I think,



       3   also, you're recommending some rate increases on



       4   consumers across the board.



       5                  So -- and -- and because I'm not that



       6   good with number, I'm trying to figure all this out.



       7          MS. O'DRAIN:  Uh-huh.  Well, one thing, for



       8   the CARE automatic enrollment -- it's a different



       9   budget, and the money is spent in different ways.  We



      10   spend -- because we used to be the -- the bargain



      11   basement of penetration -- we were way down there --



      12   we've worked very diligently to get that up.



      13                  And so we've spent significantly more



      14   on outreach and feel that it -- it has been paying



      15   off in terms of outreach.



      16                  Automatic enrollment is one of the



      17   other things we do in CARE that was -- automatic



      18   enrollment is easy.  It's a nice big bump.  You get



      19   the names from the partner organization.  And you



      20   match 'em up and put them on.  And it's -- it works



      21   out great for everybody.



      22                  So that is not -- once we -- once we



      23   fine-tune our databases and everything to accept the



      24   automatic enrollment and then our processes in place,



      25   this automatic -- doing the automatic enrollment,
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       1   when we get the new names from CSD or our other --



       2   our other partners that we automatically enroll



       3   with -- it's not a large expense.



       4                  And it's very simple.  And the process



       5   has worked very well.  So we are finding, in terms of



       6   automatic enrollment, that we received a -- a big



       7   bump of enrollment when we first started.  Now that



       8   we've been doing it with CSD for the last year, year



       9   and a half or so, the numbers are going down



      10   significantly, which is what you'd expect.



      11                  We've gotten the -- the easy names



      12   from automatic enrollment that nobody had gotten



      13   before.  Now we're just really getting new people



      14   that are coming into the -- into their program.  So



      15   the numbers are going down.  But it's a simple quick



      16   method of getting new CARE enrollees.



      17                  So, you know, we certainly would



      18   like -- we certainly have no problem continuing it



      19   and are happy to continue it and are, in fact,



      20   exploring automatic enrollment with other agencies



      21   that we could be enrolling with, for instance, all of



      22   our neighboring utilities.



      23                  We're looking into agreements with



      24   SMUD.  We currently have done agreements and



      25   exchanged data with Silicon Valley Power and Turlock
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       1   Irrigation District and many others.



       2                  So it's -- you know, you get -- with



       3   automatic enrollment, you get a big bang for your



       4   buck because, now that it's in place, it doesn't cost



       5   much, and you just get to enroll all those people.



       6   And everybody's -- everybody's happy.  And it works



       7   out great.  But it's not -- it's very cost effective.



       8                  So -- and -- and did that answer



       9   the -- address your issue?  You have other issues?



      10          MR. WOO:  Yes.



      11          MS. O'DRAIN:  Okay.



      12                  Should I go back to LIEE -- oh,



      13   actually, I think we're moving on to CARE.  Did



      14   anybody --



      15          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Yeah, I think so.  But let me



      16   follow up with -- a little bit with Commissioner



      17   Grueneich's question --



      18          MS. O'DRAIN:  Uh-huh.



      19          ALJ WEISSMAN:  -- before about your efficiency



      20   goals through this program.  I'd like to understand a



      21   little bit better -- the Commission established an



      22   energy action plan and placed energy efficiency at



      23   the top of the list.



      24          MS. O'DRAIN:  Uh-huh.



      25          ALJ WEISSMAN:  And now, I assume -- for the
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       1   utilities' overall energy-efficiency programs -- I



       2   assume that's a very important part of the discussion



       3   and that the company's efforts to try to find a way



       4   to maximize its overall energy-efficiency gains on an



       5   annual basis --



       6                  And for the transcript, I'll indicate



       7   that you're nodding your head.



       8          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes.  Right.  Sorry.



       9          ALJ WEISSMAN:  That's okay.  And I guess the



      10   question is "Where does LIEE fit into this?  Is LIEE



      11   part of that discussion?"



      12          MS. O'DRAIN:  LIEE is part of that discussion.



      13   One of the differences with the LIEE program, while



      14   energy efficiency is very important for the program



      15   and we do seek to maximize the energy efficiency



      16   that's being accorded to, you know, the benefit of



      17   all the ratepayers in California and the low-income



      18   customers, we -- low income in California -- the Low



      19   Income Energy Efficiency program has had the twin



      20   goal of comfort, health, and safety.



      21                  So when we look at new measures to add



      22   to the program, we run -- and the standard -- the



      23   Standardization Team has been the one that's done



      24   this in the past -- they run the new measures through



      25   a cost-effectiveness test that incorporates energy
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       1   benefits such as comfort, health, and safety.



       2                  So certain of the measures, that we



       3   do, don't have large energy savings.  But we do them



       4   anyway either because they don't cost a lot of money



       5   and they -- they make people comfortable and they



       6   have -- we all believe there's a benefit.  If you put



       7   door weather stripping, then drafts don't come in;



       8   and we believe that's saving energy in terms of the



       9   whole house.



      10                  How much, incrementally, that one



      11   measure saves is probably not a lot.  But it also



      12   makes people feel comfortable because they're not



      13   having drafts come in.



      14          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Right.  But what -- what you



      15   just said suggests to me that -- that you have a



      16   budget that's designed to produce energy efficiency.



      17   And, then, you're going to go beyond that to provide



      18   comfort and safety to people as well.



      19                  And -- and you're nodding your head



      20   again.



      21          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes.



      22          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.  And so, I guess, my



      23   question is, "As the overall energy-efficiency



      24   program has ramped up and enlarged in response to the



      25   State's clearly expressed priorities, is the same
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       1   thing happening in terms of the energy-efficiency



       2   component of what you're doing in the LIEE program?"



       3          MS. O'DRAIN:  Well, to some extent, yes.



       4   We're -- when we are treating homes and enrolling



       5   participants in the -- in the Low Income Energy



       6   Efficiency program, we are required to install all



       7   feasible measures.  So we can't go and target a home



       8   that just needs a refrigerator, for instance --



       9          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Uh-huh.



      10          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- because then it -- you



      11   wouldn't be find- -- we don't know, when we go into a



      12   home, what it's going to need.  We -- at this time,



      13   we are going -- we go back, when people call, to



      14   do -- to install refrigerators that they now qualify



      15   for that they didn't qualify for before.  And a



      16   refrigerator is a particularly energy-efficient



      17   measure.



      18                  So that's certainly something to



      19   consider when we talk about go-backs because that --



      20   an energy-efficient refrigerator, you know, produces



      21   a large bang for the buck.  But we don't target homes



      22   just on the basis of what we think they might need.



      23   And sometimes when we go to homes, they don't need



      24   very much that has large savings.



      25                  So it's harder to target homes.  We
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       1   do -- by doing as many homes as we can, we hope to --



       2   I mean we obviously are hoping to install measures



       3   that contribute to energy savings --



       4          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.  Well, that's the key --



       5   doing as many homes as you can --



       6          MS. O'DRAIN:  Uh-huh.



       7          ALJ WEISSMAN:  -- but how are you



       8   discerning -- determining how many homes you can?



       9   Based on what?



      10          MS. O'DRAIN:  Oh, based on -- if you go back



      11   to the table that shows -- probably the best one to



      12   look at -- I'm looking at the "Measure Unit



      13   Comparisons" table here and a combination of looking



      14   at that table and the "Cost" table.



      15                  How we determine how many homes we can



      16   do is based on our history of knowing how much



      17   measures cost -- we've been doing this for several



      18   years now; so we know, on average, how many homes out



      19   there need, you know -- what percentage of homes are



      20   going to need refrigerators, what percentage are



      21   going to require door weather stripping.



      22                  And we take the budget and kind of



      23   tool it around, based on the trends we see in terms



      24   of what homes need.



      25          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.  So what I'm hearing you
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       1   say is that your level of penetration, in a given



       2   year, is budget driven?



       3          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes.



       4          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.  So have you considered



       5   turning that -- that analysis upside down?  Setting



       6   penetration goals for the year and then determining



       7   what kind of budget you need to do it?



       8          MS. O'DRAIN:  Well, that would be -- yes.  We



       9   could do that.  Whether or not we'd -- in terms of



      10   how many homes -- we know, in California, that a lot



      11   of homes need a lot of help and a lot of these



      12   measures and it -- and it could save a lot of energy



      13   and provide a lot of comfort, health, and safety.



      14                  We have been budget driven.  And



      15   that's one reason we don't go out and advertise the



      16   LIEE program very heavily because demand could be



      17   very high.  We haven't asked for a rate increase



      18   because that would -- because that would require --



      19   we haven't asked for an increase because that would



      20   require a rate increase.



      21                  And, in general, that's something we



      22   want to think very hard about before we did it.  To



      23   actually have all of the funding available to go out



      24   and provide for every low-income customer home would



      25   probably be a pretty heavy rate increase to the
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       1   other -- to the other customers, some of whom may be



       2   near low income themselves.  Then they'd be paying



       3   for this rate increase.



       4                  It's -- it would be -- we've talked



       5   about it before.  It's a huge amount of money to



       6   provide everything that everybody needs.  So both in



       7   terms of how much money it is and also in terms of



       8   the contracting resources and the staff and personnel



       9   available to go and work on everybody's home could be



      10   very large.



      11                  So, yes, it's certainly something that



      12   could be thought of.  But there's other implications



      13   that we need to think about as well.



      14          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Any other questions before we



      15   move on to CARE?



      16                  And your 20 minutes has now become 40



      17   so -- and it's mostly because of our questions -- so



      18   I mean if you can kind of get through CARE quickly,



      19   it would be --



      20          MS. O'DRAIN:  I can get through CARE very



      21   quickly, I think.  And it's not that there's anything



      22   wrong with CARE.  It is a great story for us.



      23                  In general -- and this will help the



      24   others, too, because CARE is also a standardized



      25   program; so the CARE -- so for all of the utilities,
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       1   CARE provides a 20 percent rate discount to the



       2   qualifying low-income customers.



       3                  The income guidelines are based on a



       4   hundred-seventy-five percent of the federal poverty



       5   guidelines with adjustments for household size, the



       6   same as for the LIEE program, except that the 200



       7   percent federal poverty-guideline eligibility



       8   criteria for seniors and disabled is not part of the



       9   CARE program.



      10                  PG&E is currently at 73 percent of its



      11   estimated eligible customers enrolled.  We've



      12   enrolled -- over 934,000 are currently enrolled with



      13   the program.  And as I've said before, we've -- from



      14   2001 to 2004, we've -- we're competitive with the



      15   other utilities.



      16                  We're not down at the bottom of the



      17   penetration game.  We're right there pretty much with



      18   everyone else.  And we've had a huge increase since



      19   that time, largely based on our outreach, leveraging,



      20   and automatic enrollment.



      21                  With the CARE program, we are also



      22   requesting no change in our CARE admin budget from



      23   the 2005 program.  So it is the same $7-and-a-half-



      24   million CARE administration budget per year.



      25                  We've discussed outreach already --
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       1   that we have very aggressive campaigns.  So you can



       2   look at the -- the slide to tell you about all of the



       3   wonderful things we're doing and all of the -- all of



       4   the other agencies, including our own employees, that



       5   we're working with to -- to help us increase our CARE



       6   enrollment and meet our goal of enrolling 100 percent



       7   of all eligible CARE customers who want to



       8   participate.



       9                  Leveraging -- we leverage within the



      10   program.  We leverage the CARE program with our other



      11   low-income programs -- LIEE and the FERA program.



      12   Our customer reps have CARE status right at their



      13   fingertips, when a CARE customer calls, and can help



      14   refer them to other low-income programs available to



      15   the customer.



      16                  And we leverage -- we leverage with



      17   other -- we put other agency information right on our



      18   application so customers can find out what other help



      19   might be available to them.



      20                  We discussed automatic enrollment; so



      21   I'll skip that.  And the other -- the other issue in



      22   CARE, the other achievement, I guess, for the year --



      23   we are -- we have just begun automatically enrolling



      24   the Nonprofit Migrant Farmworker Housing Centers.



      25   And that's per the recent decision and Assembly Bill
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       1   868.



       2                  We've already enrolled all 22 of our



       3   Office of Migrant Services Farmworker Centers and



       4   are actively seeking to identify any other nonprofit



       5   qualifying centers that are out there in our service



       6   area.



       7                  There are two CARE tables.  This is



       8   the "CARE Cost Comparison by Cost Category," showing



       9   the -- the requested budget, which is total expenses.



      10   It's kind of -- it's kind of in the middle -- dark,



      11   bolded, where it says "Total Expenses."  That is



      12   the -- that's the admin budget.



      13                  The total program and cost and



      14   discounts down below includes the admin budget plus



      15   our estimated rate discounts and avoided surcharges.



      16                  And our participation rates -- we



      17   already touched on those.  Our estimated eligible is



      18   currently 1.2 million customers.  And we've been --



      19   we've currently enrolled -- well, that was through



      20   April.  We've currently enrolled -- I think it was



      21   nine hundred and --



      22          "LINDA":  31,000.



      23          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- thirty-one thousand.  Yes.



      24   Linda has that memorized.



      25                  That's basically our presentation.
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       1   Did you have any other questions?



       2          MR. WOO:  Yeah.  I wanted to go back 'cause of



       3   the questioning line that Steve was doing got me



       4   going and thinking about something.



       5                  On Page 12, where you're talking about



       6   the LIEE measure-unit comparison -- so, if I read



       7   this right, in 2004, you recorded total number of



       8   house weatherized -- 37,514.  And through April 30,



       9   it was 8,000.  And so, if you estimated it for Year



      10   2005 -- 49,500.



      11          MS. O'DRAIN:  Uh-huh.



      12          MR. WOO:  But then you're estimating, with no



      13   increase in the budget, 40,500 for '06 and the same



      14   amount for '07.  Even though there's no increase and



      15   you still have carryover, you're projecting 9,000



      16   houses less per --



      17          MS. O'DRAIN:  This would --



      18          MR. WOO:  -- is that what you're --



      19          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- this would be -- well, as the



      20   Commissioner suggested, it is apples and oranges.



      21          MR. WOO:  Oh.



      22          MS. O'DRAIN:  This is without carryover



      23   included.  This is just with the authorized budget.



      24   So the last two columns with 2006 and 2007 estimated



      25   would be with the authorized budget.
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       1                  All of the other columns for 2004 and



       2   then the -- the through April of 2005 and the 2005



       3   estimated includes what we knew of the carryover at



       4   that time.  And we will provide carryover estimates



       5   for 2006 and '7.



       6          MR. WOO:  So, again, to put it in plain



       7   English so that I understand, to help the Commission



       8   make a decision, when the LIOB look at recommending



       9   whether to approve your budget or not, one thing



      10   we're looking at is a flat budget.  But we are aware



      11   there's a carryover.



      12                  Because it's not in here, if I was to



      13   look at it -- but this does not do enough because



      14   there's 10,000 units or so that's not there.



      15                  Somewhere else, we have to assume



      16   or -- or where -- where is the instrument of



      17   information that will tell us that that's still going



      18   to be some additional money to do that other 10,000



      19   unit or if it's needed or not?



      20                  And it seemed like, in your service



      21   area, even though you reached 72 percent, there's



      22   still people that still need to be reached and you're



      23   down to the "hard to serve" --



      24          MS. O'DRAIN:  That 72 percent is CARE.



      25          MR. WOO:  CARE.  Right.  Okay.
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       1          MS. O'DRAIN:  It's not LIEE.



       2          MR. WOO:  Okay.  So I don't want to see you



       3   shortchanged at a time where we -- the Commission is



       4   going in the direction of more energy efficiency to



       5   serve more people so that California doesn't get this



       6   meltdown in term of energy.



       7                  Are you -- are reducing, then?  Or are



       8   you going to still be able to convey the ever-



       9   increasing number of people that needs to be served?



      10   'Cause we have the other indication that there's more



      11   aging furnaces out there and stuff and older housing



      12   stuff because of the housing -- people being moved



      13   into housing -- houses and living together more



      14   because of the high cost of housing.



      15                  I'm not understanding, when we -- we



      16   support your motion for your budget, are we going to



      17   be doing a disservice to low-income people or --



      18          MS. O'DRAIN:  Our budget does not include --



      19   our budget includes replacing and repairing furnaces



      20   under the current guidelines.



      21          MR. WOO:  Under current guidelines.



      22          MS. O'DRAIN:  So that is when they fail the



      23   NGAT test.  So there's some problem with the furnace



      24   in making it fail the NGAT test.  We repair or



      25   replace it.  If we were repairing or replace -- well,
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       1   if we were replacing furnaces that are simply old,



       2   that would actually have a very large impact on the



       3   budget because, first of all --



       4          MR. WOO:  That does not anticipate the need to



       5   go back and do some of those things; right?



       6          MS. O'DRAIN:  No, it doesn't.  And that would,



       7   if we had our current budget and we replaced -- I



       8   think we ran some projected numbers -- if we



       9   replaced furnaces that are old -- and I don't know



      10   how old "old" was -- but if we replaced older



      11   furnaces, 30 years --



      12          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  If we replaced 90



      13   percent of our furnaces in our territory to each



      14   house that we did, it would be about a 55 percent cut



      15   in the number of units we could touch in a year.



      16          MS. O'DRAIN:  So with the same budget -- if --



      17   with a $56 million budget, if we are saying that we



      18   could treat or weatherize 40,000 homes, I believe we



      19   would only be able to weatherize, say, 17,000 --



      20          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Yeah.



      21          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- homes if we replaced 90



      22   percent of our furnaces.  So with the same budget,



      23   that would have a drastic impact --



      24          MR. WOO:  What --



      25          MS. O'DRAIN:  -- to add furnaces with that
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       1   type of a criteria.



       2          MR. WOO:  Unless you used more of the



       3   carryover or something else, I guess; right?



       4          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes.  But the carryover, I



       5   mean -- yes.  That would -- for a year, that would



       6   probably help a lot.  And then the carryover would be



       7   gone.  And we'd be at our authorized budget or we'd



       8   need to request more budget or do less homes.



       9          MR. GARCIA:  I have a couple questions in



      10   regards to that.  The first one, as you talked about



      11   your budget, as it -- as it talks about the



      12   replacement of furnaces and stuff -- what energy



      13   savings does that save to the program?



      14          MS. O'DRAIN:  Furnaces?



      15          MR. GARCIA:  Yes.  If you just started



      16   replacing furnaces, based on age.



      17                  Second question is "In your 06-07, you



      18   don't show any of the new measure items.  And what



      19   type of impact does Title 24 and what type of impact



      20   do the new measures play in this?  And are you --



      21   could you come up with proposals or recommendations



      22   that you plan on those new measures taking effect?



      23                  "And would you just be using carryover



      24   dollars to do that?  Or would you be looking at



      25   current dollars and then asking for additional?  Do
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       1   you have any idea what those impacts would be to the



       2   program" --



       3          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes, we can --



       4          MR. GARCIA:  -- "for 06 and 07?"



       5          MS. O'DRAIN:  Okay.  Yes, we can address those



       6   questions.



       7          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  I'm Frances "Pigney"



       8   (phonetic).



       9                  So what we would do is we would just



      10   keep digging into our carryover till we ran -- till



      11   we ran it all out.



      12          MS. O'DRAIN:  We are not proposing, at this



      13   time, added budget.



      14          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Yes.



      15          MS. O'DRAIN:  So we would take the current



      16   budget, and we'd spread it.  In fact, in our



      17   application, we said that this is only based on the



      18   two thousand -- the current 2005 measures.  Should



      19   there be any changes at this time, we would not



      20   propose increasing the budget.  We'd spread the



      21   budget out to accommodate that.



      22                  So new measures would obviously mean



      23   less homes; if they're expensive new measures, a lot



      24   less homes.  If they're not expensive measures, maybe



      25   not so much less.
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       1          MR. GARCIA:  Well, but looking at the new



       2   measures that are being proposed -- they are costly?



       3          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes.



       4          MS. "FRANCES PIGNEY":  Right.



       5          MS. O'DRAIN:  Yes.  And that would have a big



       6   impact on the program.



       7          MR. GARCIA:  Okay.



       8          MS. O'DRAIN:  They are costly.



       9                  And you asked about the benefits of



      10   replacing old furnaces.  And I don't know what those



      11   benefits would be.  I would tend to agree with



      12   "Yolie" (phonetic) that that's something that should



      13   be explored -- whether there are savings for simply



      14   replacing a furnace or not -- something I am not



      15   aware of.



      16          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.  We're going to need to



      17   move on.  Do you have -- do you have still lingering



      18   questions that have not been answered?



      19          MR. GARCIA:  No.  That's fine.



      20          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.



      21                  I want to thank you, Ms. O'Drain, for



      22   your presentation.  And I'm going to mark your



      23   slides as Exhibit A so that people following the



      24   transcript can know what document is being referred



      25   to when you refer to page numbers.
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       1                  (Exhibit A was identified for the



       2                   record.)



       3          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Let's move right on --



       4                  Thank you very much.



       5                  Let's move on to Southern California



       6   Edison.  I've got my alphabet still; correct?



       7                  And we'll go off the record.



       8                  (Off-the-record discussion.)



       9          ALJ WEISSMAN:  On the record.



      10                  We'll now move to Southern California



      11   Edison.  I'm going to mark Edison's PowerPoint slides



      12   as Exhibit B.



      13                  (Exhibit B was identified for the



      14                   record.)



      15          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Why don't you proceed?



      16          MR. PARKHILL:  Okay.  Thank you.  My name's



      17   Jack Parkhill.  And I'm the manager of our low-income



      18   program.  And let me get right into this.  And John



      19   Nall, who is my manager, sits on the LIOB right now.



      20                  So, John, feel free to jump in.



      21          MR. NALL:  More fun having you do it, Jack.



      22   I'm a board member today.



      23          MR. PARKHILL:  Okay.  I wanted to give you a



      24   little bit of a history on our funding.  In 2003, we



      25   had the remnants of SBX1-5.  So you'll see that our
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       1   numbers are a little bit higher there, you know.  For



       2   CARE, our funding historically had been at $2.8



       3   million.



       4                  We finally got a balancing-account



       5   treatment.  And this year, we went up to 4.9 million.



       6   And that's what we're asking for the next two years.



       7                  On our energy-efficiency side, or our



       8   Low Income Energy Efficiency program, prior to 2003



       9   or prior to SBX1-5 -- actually our budget was at



      10   about $7.3 million.  SBX1-5 came along and increased



      11   our funding.  And when it went away, we asked for an



      12   increase up to $15.8 million in 2004.



      13                  And in 2005, we asked for an increase



      14   of about $11 million, going up to 27.4 million.  And



      15   that's what we've asked for 2006 and 2007.  This is



      16   kind of a test year for us to see if we can spend



      17   that much money.



      18                  But if you'll -- I'll explain a little



      19   bit later why this -- this jump occurred.  The first



      20   slide here talks about our CARE enrollment.  Our CARE



      21   enrollment right now is at 966,000.  But this gives



      22   you an idea of where we think we're going to be at



      23   the end of 2007.



      24                  At the end of 2004, we were at



      25   974,000.  Year-end 2005, we expect to be at a
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       1   million, which would be 88 percent; 2006, at a



       2   million.  And what you'll notice here is that the



       3   estimated eligibility remains constant.



       4                  So you'll see these percentages in



       5   terms of penetration rates go down, just based on the



       6   demographics, which generally increase in number each



       7   year.  So right now, we're at 84 percent.  So, again,



       8   they -- we do -- I think it's twice a year that we do



       9   a check on the demographics.  So those will change.



      10                  Kind of giving you an overview of our



      11   categories, instead of going line item by line item.



      12   But, you know, we're seeking $4.1 million for our



      13   CARE program, basically broken down into three



      14   areas -- our outreach and marketing, our operations,



      15   and our admin.



      16                  In outreach, we do a variety of



      17   things.  Our CARE annual solicitation -- all



      18   utilities are required to do that.  It goes out to



      19   every residential customers that's not on CARE.  We



      20   do bill-messaging, once-a-quarter bill inserts,



      21   whenever we have room.  Our call center's required to



      22   offer the CARE program to all customers -- all new



      23   customers coming on -- on board.  Authorized payment



      24   agencies.



      25                  Our capitation fee program is -- is an
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       1   outreach program where we utilize community-based



       2   organizations.  In our service territory, we have a



       3   lot of contractors doing this work.  The -- the



       4   numbers aren't great.



       5                  But we get so much value out of



       6   face-to-face contact with the customers through these



       7   agencies.  In 2004, there were about 5,000 customers



       8   that were enrolled through the capitation program.



       9                  Companywide outreach efforts -- in



      10   this is -- we're very strong in having our employees



      11   work on getting the word out for CARE.  Faith-based



      12   organizations, the Archdiocese of Los Angeles,



      13   Riverside, San Bernardino, Orange County.



      14                  Workplace alliances where you find a



      15   lot of low-income customers who have those jobs --



      16   building maintenance, hotels -- we try to get our



      17   account executives to go out there and try to get the



      18   word out.



      19                  Our volunteer efforts -- we have what



      20   we call our "affinity groups" -- various ethnic



      21   groups that have their own volunteer efforts in their



      22   own communities.  Our public affairs -- senior



      23   outreach or consumer affairs does a lot of work in



      24   that area.



      25                  Data sharing -- we share data with
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       1   Southwest Gas, with PG&E now, and with So Cal Gas.



       2   And that's been quite successful and trying to



       3   automate whenever we can.



       4                  "EAF" is our Energy Assistance Fund,



       5   which used to a winter bill-paying program.  And for



       6   Edison, it's kind of in the opposite.  This year, it



       7   went year-round.  And so now we're able to provide



       8   those customers in need of bill assistance during



       9   summer months.



      10                  We want to build on our 2005



      11   successes.  You know, one of 'em is a targeted



      12   mailing that we do maybe two or three times a year.



      13   We got a very good response on one we went -- it went



      14   out in March.  4 percent response is really good.



      15                  Out of those respondents, 87 percent



      16   of them were put on the CARE rate.  And 15,000



      17   customers were enrolled.  And the total cost per



      18   enrollment was $6 for an effort like this.



      19                  We want to continue our in-language



      20   communications and expand on that.  Our multimedia



      21   campaign, print and radio ads -- in-language



      22   coverage, again, is very big.  We're trying to move



      23   even further on that.



      24                  A welcome kit is kind of a -- a good



      25   story.  It was targeted to new residential accounts.
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       1   And now the twist is that there are a large number of



       2   customers that fall off of CARE because their



       3   accounts are closed.  Unless they are opening up a



       4   new account at the time they close an account, we --



       5   they aren't put on CARE.  And we don't know when they



       6   come back on.



       7                  But when they do come back on, they'll



       8   get a kit that will have a CARE application in it.



       9   And hopefully, we'll catch 'em there.  So we're



      10   getting a 3.2 response.  We've had 2,000 customers



      11   enrolled.  And that's been since July.  So it's



      12   another effort that helps.



      13                  On the operation side, processing and



      14   billing, enrollment recertification-verification is



      15   the name of the game there.  Source codes have been



      16   at the core of SC's ability to evaluate our outreach



      17   efforts.



      18                  Applications contain a field source --



      19   a field for the source codes so that we can track



      20   applications by event, language, those that are



      21   approved, those that are rejected, no response -- so



      22   we're able to evaluate each event on a case-by-case



      23   or event-by-event basis.  We also assign the source



      24   codes to contractors so that we can measure their



      25   success too.
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       1                  Billing system and programming has



       2   always been huge because we're making so many changes



       3   to try to increase enrollment.  So it's IT changes.



       4   And if you know anything about IT, it costs a lot and



       5   takes a long time.  So we go from year to year trying



       6   to get our IT changes at the top of the list.  And we



       7   have to fight.



       8                  CARE initiatives:  There are a number.



       9   I'll speak to this a little bit later.  I've put, you



      10   know, Tim's agency in caps and bolded it.  But he's



      11   not here to see it so --



      12                  On the administration side, in



      13   measurement and evaluation, you know, we look at



      14   program penetration.  You know, we want to look at



      15   the number of -- there's a -- there's a relatively



      16   high number of customers that fail to respond to our



      17   verification and our recertification requests.



      18                  And so we're trying to look at "What



      19   are the reasons for that?"  50 percent of the



      20   customers drop off on our -- on our verification.



      21   And what we're looking at now is to try a new type of



      22   communications effort targeted to those customers so



      23   that they will respond.



      24                  We've found that, you know, they just



      25   don't understand, you know, what documents and how
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       1   are they going to get it to us.



       2                  Other CARE initiatives.



       3   Recertification.  Some of the other utilities have



       4   already moved forward on some of these efforts, but



       5   to allow duplicate applicants -- applications to



       6   be -- to serve as a recertification of that customer



       7   on the program will actually decrease some of the



       8   labor costs that we have.



       9                  "Program-based qualification" -- I



      10   just threw that in as a ringer.



      11                  On the "ULTS" side, they have



      12   established program-based eligibility for ULTS.  If



      13   they participate -- if they are enrolled in a LIHEAP,



      14   for example, they are automatically eligible for



      15   ULTS.  So it's something that I think low-income



      16   programs on this side of the house, so to speak, will



      17   have to consider.



      18                  Cool centers.  We operated cool



      19   centers for a few years.  But in -- in this decision,



      20   the Commission granted conditional approval to



      21   operate our cool centers.  Our funding was reduced



      22   from 425,000 to 95,000.



      23                  A lot of this had to deal with



      24   transportation -- you know, rent, insurance,



      25   personnel -- and some of the areas that the -- our
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       1   agencies thought were required to operate the



       2   centers -- there was just -- there was a difference



       3   of -- of thoughts on this.



       4                  The -- so in compliance with



       5   Commission orders, we contacted our past contractors



       6   to find out whether they'd be interested.  They --



       7   they could not, within the Commission orders, operate



       8   the center for this year.  So we did not have



       9   contractors to operate cool center this year.



      10                  It's something that we're looking at,



      11   that we want to talk more with the energy division on



      12   to see what we can do.  There's going to have to be a



      13   change -- some kind of change in policy for us to



      14   move forward in 2006.



      15                  Our Energy Management Assistance



      16   program, our LIEE program, where we install



      17   appliances -- you know, we're not a weatherization



      18   utility.  As a matter of fact, you know, if Whirlpool



      19   wouldn't have bought Maytag, maybe we would have



      20   because we install, you know, a lot of refrigerators.



      21                  Our funding application for 2006-2007



      22   is at 27.4 million, the same as it is in 2005.  About



      23   21 million of this is spent directly on the purchase



      24   and installation of appliances, about 3 million for



      25   outreach and assessment, about 500,000 for







                                                             61

�





       1   inspections and energy education, and about 1.8



       2   million was used for program administration.



       3                  Our installation:  You know, we're



       4   a -- we -- you know, we're a cooling company, you



       5   know.  We're a peak-load-reduction company.  You



       6   know, we want to install measures where they had the



       7   greatest impact but most of all where they had the



       8   greatest need.  And that's in the Coachella Valley;



       9   Upper, Lower Desert.



      10                  So what we try to target, whenever we



      11   can, is cooling measures and refrigerators.  We



      12   anticipate installing 1,200 window-wall air



      13   conditioners in 2006,  1,300 in 2007.  What will



      14   affect this is a -- a exception to the -- to the



      15   10-year rule that would allow us to go back and



      16   service customers with central AC and with



      17   window-wall AC's in Climate Zone 10.



      18                  Evaporative coolers have always been a



      19   cornerstone of Edison's program.  We expect to



      20   install 5,300 and 5,400, respectively.  And the



      21   refrigerator, of course, is the biggest user and



      22   saver in a customer home.  So 24,000 in 2006,  24,000



      23   in 2007.  A little bit more than 60 percent of our



      24   customers get refrigerators -- 60 percent of the



      25   customers that we work with.
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       1                  We have a two-pronged approach in



       2   servicing, you know, customers.  And -- and this is



       3   where and this explains our need to increase our --



       4   our funding in 2005.  The comprehensive approach to



       5   servicing customers ran into a little bit of a snag



       6   in joint-utility service area, where you had two



       7   different utilities servicing the same customer.



       8                  Because So Cal Gas was servicing --



       9   was weatherizing homes, they had a larger number of



      10   homes that they were servicing than we did because we



      11   had a higher cost.  Our cost increased as



      12   refrigerators became a bigger part of our program.



      13                  So upwards of 85 percent of the



      14   customers that receive electric measures are being



      15   referred to us through DAP.  And this is in -- this



      16   is, you know, based on past experience.  The -- and



      17   this presents a problem if So Cal Gas, which is



      18   happening -- which will explain some of our costs



      19   this year.



      20                  The -- the more that So Cal Gas works



      21   DWP service territory -- or their contractors go out



      22   and service customers that are eligible that are in



      23   need, if it happens to be DWP service territory, that



      24   customer's not going to be referred to us.



      25                  And this year there's been, at least
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       1   up until now, a little bit more work in that area.



       2   So we haven't been getting as much assessment.  So we



       3   have to retool and outreach and -- which is good for



       4   us 'cause now we get to cooling areas and get more



       5   cooling measures.



       6                  So that 85 percent is kind of an



       7   automatic.  It's supposed to come to us.  You know,



       8   this is the first big year that we're -- we're



       9   assessing this.  The other 15 percent, we can go and



      10   outreach on our own.  So we go out to the extreme



      11   climate areas.



      12                  The electric measures that we have



      13   here -- you know, refrigerators, CFLs, evaporative



      14   coolers -- I put in the measures that are being



      15   proposed by the Standardization Team.



      16                  And, you know, again, there are two



      17   exceptions there.  The one exception -- this go-back



      18   rule -- we will be able to go back to customers that



      19   had been treated but didn't get a central AC or they



      20   have been treated but they didn't get a window-wall



      21   AC because it wasn't offered at that time.



      22                  Both purchasing and leverage is really



      23   a huge part of our program.  We competitively bid all



      24   of the appliances.



      25                  This year, we went into an agreement
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       1   where we competitively bid all appliances where -- it



       2   was a bulk purchase -- whereby our contractors will



       3   work with one vendor to get all of the appliances



       4   that they need as opposed to working with a



       5   manufacturer of refrigerators, a distributor of ACs,



       6   distributor of lightbulbs.



       7                  So we think this is -- is a more



       8   effective approach.  And for our contractors, it



       9   makes life a little bit easier because it's cost



      10   efficiencies that are achieved through this model.



      11   And we think it's going to make life a lot easier for



      12   everybody.



      13                  Leveraging.  In the past, what we've



      14   done with LIHEAP contractors is really simple.  We



      15   give them the refrigerators.  They save money on



      16   their LIHEAP side and do all of the other measures



      17   through LIHEAP.  We report that customer as having



      18   received a refrigerator.



      19                  But that's how we leverage our



      20   program.  It's very, very, very simple and very



      21   quick.  We just have our vendors ship over X number



      22   of refrigerators to them.  They have to service our



      23   customers.



      24                  Any customers that we go out and



      25   treat -- that's, in other words, So Cal Gas's
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       1   customer -- we will also refer them there.



       2                  I don't think I need to go through



       3   this.  And I don't need to go through that either.



       4                  And that's it.



       5          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.  Well, thank you very



       6   much.  I think I'd like to suggest that we actually



       7   give you a breather right now.  I think what we're



       8   going to do is --



       9          MR. PARKHILL:  Okay.



      10          ALJ WEISSMAN:  -- if there are any questions



      11   to Edison, until we've had a opportunity for members



      12   of the public to make their comments.



      13          MR. PARKHILL:  Okay.



      14          ALJ WEISSMAN:  And we wanted to get this



      15   meeting started at 1:00.  For necessary reasons, we



      16   had to start later.  And -- and obviously there's lot



      17   of interest in the presentations being made by the



      18   utilities as well.  We're a little behind schedule.



      19                  So I think now what we'll do is move



      20   into public comment.  And then, after that, we'll see



      21   if there are any lingering questions for Edison and



      22   then move into the Sempra utilities after that.



      23   Okay?  All right.



      24                  So off the record.



      25                  (Off-the-record discussion.)
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       1          ALJ WEISSMAN:  On the record.  We're going to



       2   move into public comment at this point.  And then



       3   we'll return to utility presentations.  We'll start



       4   with Laura Cortez.  And, then, on deck will be Gary



       5   Griffen followed by Kathy Ford.



       6          MS. CORTEZ:  Hi.  I'm Laura Cortez with Dunbar



       7   Economic Development Corporation.  And the person



       8   that actually does the property management could not



       9   come in.  And my executive -- I'm representing my



      10   executive director.  I'm the Financial Services



      11   Manager.



      12                  And I really wanted to come up and say



      13   that I really thank these programs because it does



      14   help a lot of our low-income families and it also



      15   lowers our cost in the hundred-and-thirty-three units



      16   that we own.  And I really wish that we could



      17   continue with these programs.



      18                  I assist first-time home buyers.  And



      19   these are low-income families, and they really



      20   benefit from the program.  And that's basically what



      21   I wanted to say.  And I thank the program.



      22          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.  Thanks for coming,



      23   for being so patient this afternoon.



      24                  Gary Griffen, followed by Kathy Ford



      25   and then David Wear -- I'm sorry -- then Stephanie
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       1   Kotin.



       2          MR. GRIFFEN:  My name is Gary Griffen.  I'm



       3   the Executive Vice President of Lincoln Training



       4   Center Vocational Training Facility for adults with



       5   disabilities in South El Monte.



       6                  Not only do we provide vocational



       7   training but we also provide other services and



       8   assistances with the low-income family.  Most of our,



       9   if not all of our, clients are low income.  One of



      10   the services we do provide is helping out with the



      11   CARE program.



      12                  Through our community partnership with



      13   the gas company, they have provided all the



      14   information that we need to give to our clients and



      15   our consumers -- not only to the consumers that we



      16   serve but their parents, all the volunteers that we



      17   work with.



      18                  And I know that we've had a



      19   significant number of our clients sign up with the



      20   program.  And it's been a great benefit to them.  So



      21   anything we can do to keep that in place is -- has my



      22   vote.  Okay.  Anything?



      23          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you very much.



      24          MR. GRIFFEN:  Thank you.



      25          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you for being here.
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       1          MR. GRIFFEN:  Okay.



       2          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Kathy Ford followed by



       3   Stephanie Kotin and then David Wear.



       4          MS. FORD:  Kathy Ford.  I'm Chief Operation --



       5   Chief Operations Officer for L.A. Works.  We are a



       6   human-services organization in the Eastern San



       7   Gabriel Valley area.  And we serve roughly a quarter-



       8   million low-income ratepayers out in our area.



       9                  And we've had a wonderful 25-year



      10   partnership with both the gas company and the Edison



      11   company in serving our low-income ratepayers.  And



      12   over those years, we've been -- we've probably served



      13   in the neighborhood of 30,000 low-income ratepayers



      14   with energy-conservation services.



      15                  So we don't take the filings lightly.



      16   And sometimes we have been on the same side of the



      17   table with the utilities in terms of their filings;



      18   and sometimes we've put on our boxing gloves and had



      19   a good duke-it-out session.



      20                  And so this particular year, we're --



      21   I'm standing before you supporting the gas company,



      22   especially the gas company's filing unless, of



      23   course, the Board decides to take up the issue that I



      24   heard this morning, which is furnace repair versus



      25   replacement.
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       1                  And if the gas company is leaning



       2   toward or is forced to lean toward more furnace



       3   replacement versus furnace repair, then I'm going to



       4   have a huge concern for our low-income energy



       5   ratepayers.  And that would be primarily because,



       6   right now, I have no -- no complaints coming from



       7   customers relative to repair versus replacement of



       8   their furnaces.



       9                  So I don't see it -- the issue that --



      10   my agency does not see it as the same issue that was



      11   expressed this morning.



      12                  And to further that, I'm hearing from



      13   the gas company that there will be consideration of



      14   those clients whose furnaces need replacement after



      15   they've been repaired -- that they will consider, on



      16   a case-by-case basis, looking at those furnaces.



      17                  And I know that the gas company is



      18   "Glad to be of service."  So when I call the gas



      19   company and I ask for such help, I believe that I



      20   will be given fair consideration and that our low-



      21   income ratepayers will be given fair consideration.



      22   And if they aren't, then we will put on the duking



      23   gloves so --



      24                  And to further that, I think, if the



      25   Board starts to consider repair versus replacement of
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       1   furnaces, I think, again, we need -- it brings up a



       2   whole huge issue again and opens up Pandora's box



       3   relative to us being able to serve three



       4   weatherization clients versus one appliance-repair



       5   client.



       6                  And so -- oh, I'm sorry.



       7                   -- appliance-replacement client.



       8                  And so over the span of five years, if



       9   we are talking about 3 to 1, we're talking about in



      10   the neighborhood of 35,000 weatherization clients who



      11   will not be served versus 11,000 folks, low-income



      12   folks, who are going to get furnace replacement.



      13                  So I would ask for you to look at that



      14   very seriously because that creates great heartburn



      15   for our -- my low-income ratepayers and for my



      16   agency.



      17                  And just in closing, I'd like for you



      18   to -- to, again, seriously consider whether you're



      19   interested in serving the low-income masses or to



      20   serve the low-income few.  And I would like for you



      21   to consider the low-income masses.  Thank you.



      22          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you very much.



      23                  Stephanie Kotin.  After David Wear



      24   will be May To.  Okay?



      25          MS. KOTIN:  Okay.  Hi.  My name is Stephanie.
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       1   I work for the Central American Resource Center.  And



       2   we have been partnering with the gas company for a



       3   number of years.  The Central American Resource



       4   Center is a community-based organization that



       5   operates in the Pico-Union and the Westlake area,



       6   which is the -- actually the most densely populated



       7   area west of the Mississippi.



       8                  As part of our mission, we empower the



       9   community through information and education.  And



      10   funding from the gas company in -- over the past



      11   years, has allowed the Resource Center to provide



      12   much-needed services to our low-income community.



      13                  The gas company, specifically, has



      14   been partnering in our annual community fair which --



      15   the theme of -- the theme for which is "Knowledge is



      16   Power."  At the fair, community members have the



      17   opportunity to gain knowledge about educational



      18   opportunities, government offering public services,



      19   nonprofit service agencies, and a vast array of



      20   information which they might otherwise go without.



      21                  So at this fair, the gas company sets



      22   up a booth, and they explain the CARE program and



      23   other services that they have.  And the gas company



      24   has sponsored the fair through generous donations and



      25   has been an active participant in sharing information
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       1   about their services with our community.



       2                  Because of sponsorship for the fair



       3   from the gas company, we've been able to host this



       4   annual event that informs and engages over 6,000



       5   individuals from our community.  So we are greatly



       6   appreciative of the services from the gas company.



       7   And we hope that other organizations follow in their



       8   services.  Thanks.



       9          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you very much.



      10                  Off the record.



      11                  (Off-the-record discussion.)



      12          ALJ WEISSMAN:  On the record.



      13          MR. WEAR:  Good afternoon.  I'm Dave Wear.



      14   And I'm the CEO with RHA.



      15                  I just want to say that, you know,



      16   that we, with our subcontractors, weatherize about



      17   65,000, you know, homes a year.  And we receive, you



      18   know, just countless number of letters, you know,



      19   from our people that we provide services to, thanking



      20   us for really making a difference in their life.  And



      21   this program has just been tremendous -- tremendous.



      22                  Although, like he said, the funds are



      23   limited, the number of people served is, like I said,



      24   pretty extensive over the years.  And, you know, from



      25   my involvement over the past 15 years, working both
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       1   for -- as in the LIHEAP contractor, as well as for



       2   RHA, you know, the -- like I said, the number, you



       3   know, served and the importance of this program -- I



       4   just can't emphasize it enough.



       5                  And relating to any kind of changes in



       6   the program -- for example, on this furnace repair



       7   and replacement -- if this does significantly reduce



       8   the, you know, impact to the number -- and I think



       9   the important thing here is that, over the years, you



      10   know, safety has always been paramount.



      11                  I know that, when the program, like I



      12   said, weatherize with the LIHEAP contractor or with



      13   RHA, I know that everybody is always focussed on



      14   safety.



      15                  So we're hoping that -- that, in order



      16   to, you know, help make this decision, if the Board



      17   would look at, possibly, providing some kind of a



      18   study, looking into research, you know -- "What is



      19   the appropriate, you know -- should the furnace be



      20   replaced at a particular age?"



      21                  We would like to see a study done



      22   because, again, this is very, very important because



      23   of the significant impact.  Again, we can't just -- I



      24   guess the utilities can't just raise the rates



      25   because of the high cost of energy already.  So







                                                             74

�





       1   the -- there is limited funds.



       2                  And I do believe that, you know, this



       3   is -- as I said, this is paramount to the program and



       4   hopefully through study or at least setting some



       5   standards based on some research will allow for a,



       6   you know, a proper solution to this serious problem.



       7                  So, again, I want to thank the Board



       8   for the time.



       9          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you very much.



      10                  May To.  And after Bobby Howe, we'll



      11   go to Jun Hori.



      12          MS. HOWE:  Good afternoon.  My name is Bobby



      13   Howe.  And on behalf of myself, my listeners, and



      14   KTYM radio, I want you to understand, most



      15   importantly, that the public utilities is for public.



      16   And public affairs needs to tend the nation.



      17                  And what I -- I -- I'm all -- I'm



      18   choking up here because the people that call me back



      19   are seniors that wouldn't let anyone come to their



      20   home and -- before they call me and say, "Bobby, are



      21   they going to steal my home?  They can't give me this



      22   free."



      23                  And afterwards, they come and bring



      24   baskets.  They are so happy that this program is out



      25   there.
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       1                  Now, I went to the station where they



       2   train contractors -- bring in people from the



       3   community.  So what we have here is win-win.  We've



       4   got people from the community being trained to do the



       5   weatherization, making money, turning it over.  And



       6   we have the gas company putting back into the



       7   community.



       8                  And the most important thing here is



       9   community.  And without the community getting the



      10   things that it needs, the understanding that it



      11   needs -- there are people that says, "I didn't know



      12   my house was that cold," or "I didn't know my house



      13   was that warm."



      14                  There are people out there that have



      15   been put in a position of building this great



      16   nation -- you know, it sounds awful.  I'm sounding



      17   like a radio station.  But let me say this to you:



      18   When you get older and you have built a country, they



      19   should give back.



      20                  And these are the people that don't



      21   have the funds to buy the furnace, to buy the



      22   refrigerator, to seal the windows and doors, who sit



      23   there with paper over windows and doors.  And then,



      24   when they call me and say, "It's all better," I'm --



      25   I'm practically in tears from that.
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       1                  So I say to you guys:  Give them what



       2   they need, how they need, and then they can give it



       3   back to the community.  And I thank you for putting



       4   this on and allowing me to come up here and say to



       5   you, on behalf of my listeners, "It's always time to



       6   give back."



       7          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.



       8          MR. WOO:  Bobby, thank you for coming, 'cause



       9   I know you came all the way from Inglewood.  And your



      10   station does a great community service, and it's



      11   great seeing you again.



      12          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you very much.



      13                  May To?



      14          MS. TO:  Thank you.  My name is May To.  I'm



      15   the Executive Director of the Asian Youth Center.



      16                  Commissioner Woo wants me to speak on



      17   behalf of the Thailand Service Center as well.  Their



      18   staff had to leave earlier.  However, I must say that



      19   I was not being asked to do that.



      20                  But since two agencies both serve a



      21   huge immigrant population, I think I can speak on



      22   behalf of our clients, especially those who benefit



      23   from programs such as the CARE program, their



      24   appreciation for the program to assist them



      25   throughout the years.
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       1                  We do too partner with Southern



       2   California Gas Company and Edison Company to outreach



       3   to this -- quote, unquote -- "hard-to-reach"



       4   population, who are maybe very limited English-



       5   speaking or even monolingual-language population --



       6   new arrivals, very low income.



       7                  Yeah.  Besides, you know, expressing



       8   their gratitude for this kind of program, we'd like



       9   to cast our vote to continue having this program.  We



      10   also want to add that we continue needing to do more



      11   outreach to this particular population -- a lot of



      12   bilingual materials that we'll need.



      13                  And what we, as a nonprofit agency,



      14   community-based organization do, is to offer our



      15   assistance to the program to outreach to this group



      16   of -- of clients of yours.  And within our capacity,



      17   we'd like to translate your materials into their



      18   language.



      19                  We'd also like you to put more efforts



      20   into contacting the minority media so that they can



      21   widely publicize your program.  Yeah.  I want to



      22   thank you for accommodating our schedule today.



      23          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you, Miss To.



      24                  Jun Hori followed by Carlos Jaquorano.



      25          MS. HORI:  Hi.  My name is Jun Hori.  And I'm
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       1   from the Little Tokyo Service Center.  I'm a social



       2   worker at Little Tokyo Service Center.  We're a



       3   social service agency, serving mainly low-income --



       4   primarily Japanese-speaking, as well other API



       5   monolingual -- clients as well as those in the



       6   surrounding Little Tokyo and downtown community.



       7                  We see the increasing need in our



       8   clients that we serve for these discount programs.



       9   And so we've been referring a lot of clients to



      10   LIHEAP or to CARE program with Edison and the gas



      11   company.



      12                  Along the same lines as the previous



      13   speaker, a lot of materials are in English.  And a



      14   lot of clients, you know -- they may get the -- get



      15   the pamphlets or get the flyers in the mail or hear



      16   about it but don't necessarily know what it's about.



      17   And they kind of get missed.



      18                  So I think what's needed is a lot



      19   of -- what's needed is translate -- materials that's



      20   translated in other languages and also maybe



      21   interpreters.  So we directly call for the -- for the



      22   clients and help fill out the applications for them.



      23                  But it's a, you know -- for the people



      24   that are taking advantage of this program, they



      25   really appreciate the discount that they need.  But
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       1   there is a need, increasing need, of the API



       2   community for it as well.  Thank you.



       3          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.  Carlos Jaquorano?



       4   Okay.



       5                  Off the record.



       6                  (Off-the-record discussion.)



       7          ALJ WEISSMAN:  On the record.  I think we'll



       8   move on to the next person.  Eileen Miranda, followed



       9   by Gerlie Collado.



      10          MS. MIRANDA:  Good afternoon.  My name is



      11   Eileen Miranda.  I'm here representing HOPE, which



      12   stands for "Hispanics Organized for Political



      13   Equality."  We're a California statewide Latina



      14   leadership, advocacy, and education organization.



      15                  And I'm hear to speak on behalf of the



      16   gas company and the success that our organization has



      17   seen in partnering with them in letting the community



      18   know about the CARE program.  We put on an annual



      19   conference, and they set up a booth.  And



      20   representatives come out and let the community know



      21   what the programs and services are available.



      22                  So we need to see these programs



      23   continue to service the communities.  And I'm glad



      24   that they're available.  And I'm hoping that the



      25   Board will continue with all the requests that are
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       1   being made.  And we look forward to seeing the gas



       2   company next year promoting their program at our



       3   conference again.  Thank you.



       4          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you very much.



       5                  After Miss Collado, Bruce Patton.



       6          MS. COLLADO:  Good afternoon.



       7                  That ring is actually mine.



       8          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Now, that's not what I expected



       9   to hear you say first.



      10          MS. COLLADO:  Okay.  Thank you.



      11                  My name is Gerlie Collado.  I'm



      12   actually representing "Search to Involve Pilipino-



      13   Americans."  I am the Development Manager there.  And



      14   for over 30 years, we have provided health and human



      15   services and community economic development to the



      16   multiethnic youth and families in historic Filipino



      17   Town.



      18                  We have worked with the gas company



      19   for about 10 years now.  We've worked with them



      20   collaboratively to outreach to all of our clients in



      21   regards to all of their low-income programs.  And



      22   we've seen them benefit them greatly.  So we would



      23   like to see the continued efforts of these programs.



      24   So I just wanted to say that.  Thank you so much.



      25          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you for coming.
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       1                  After Mr. Patton, Wallis Winegar.



       2          MR. PATTON:  I'm Bruce Patton.  I am with the



       3   Insulation Contractors Association.  We represent



       4   contractors working throughout the state in



       5   weatherization programs.



       6                  I had just three little cleanup items



       7   from this morning, points that I'd like to make.  And



       8   that was, first of all, I was -- when I first heard



       9   about this, I was quite surprised about the -- the



      10   thinking surrounding replacing operating, working



      11   furnaces with new furnaces at the expense of the



      12   number of clients that we could serve in the State of



      13   California.



      14                  So I wanted to raise that issue yet



      15   again.  Tim said something really that's important



      16   this morning.  He said, "Sometimes small things can



      17   have big impacts."  And one of those "small things"



      18   is the Title 24 impact on replacing furnaces, which



      19   is going to occur on October 1.



      20                  And those costs have not been



      21   calculated into the -- the many millions of dollars



      22   that we're talking about in this enhancement to the



      23   program.



      24                  Another item was this -- there was a



      25   point made that there was a -- may be a policy change
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       1   in So Cal Gas.  And my understanding of it's more of



       2   a relaxing of a policy as opposed to a policy change.



       3   And that relaxing of that policy was impacted



       4   negatively inasmuch as that that service territory



       5   began replacing roughly 90 percent of the furnaces



       6   as opposed to the balance of the state of 20 or 25



       7   percent.



       8                  Finally, the thinking is that perhaps



       9   maybe the length of service or the age of an



      10   appliance might be used as a gauge for replacement.



      11   I was thinking that, using that -- using that



      12   particular measure, some of us probably need to be



      13   replaced right now.



      14                  But besides that, that could still --



      15   that could be applied to things like windows.



      16   "They've been in there for 20 years.  Gosh, maybe we



      17   should replace those" -- or roofing or doors.



      18                  All of these would have heavy impacts



      19   on the cost of these programs and take away from the



      20   services that can be offered to the many in benefit



      21   of the few.  Thanks.



      22          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.  On deck with



      23   Ricardo Mireles.



      24          MR. WINEGAR:  Hello, I'm Wallis Winegar, from



      25   Winegard Energy.  We are a energy-service provider.
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       1   We do weatherization work and also are a HVAC



       2   contractor for both So Cal Gas and PG&E in their



       3   energy partnership program.



       4                  First of all, just like to support



       5   the applications that they've put in for continuing



       6   funding of these programs and, again, touch on the



       7   subject that seems to be the popular item today --



       8   the furnace repair-and-replacement issues, probably



       9   most of all to do with So Cal Gas.  It seems like



      10   they're the ones that there's been questions about



      11   it.



      12                  We're currently involved in that



      13   program as an HVAC contractor.  And we truly



      14   appreciate, in the last years, they've tried to work



      15   through a lot of these issues -- their willingness to



      16   involve the contractor in making decisions and trying



      17   to develop a process that would be effective using



      18   the features and policies that are already in place.



      19                  This morning, there was talk about



      20   changing some of -- and coming up with a list of



      21   standards so that we would have a list of things that



      22   would guide us in whether or not to replace a



      23   furnace.  We would probably be against that.



      24                  We like, currently, the program that



      25   they've come up with.  The way it works now is, when
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       1   we go into a home and we look at a furnace and



       2   there's a problem with that furnace, we determine



       3   whether or not we can do a replacement on it or



       4   whether we can do a repair on it.



       5                  If we feel we can do a repair, there's



       6   an incentive for us to do that repair because, if we



       7   decide we want to replace it, we send it to the gas



       8   company to do an inspection.  They send somebody out



       9   to look at it.  If they agree that it needs to be



      10   replaced, we get it back, and we go out and do the



      11   replacement.



      12                  So we want to do the repair because,



      13   if we send it to them and -- for replacement and they



      14   go out and see that it can be a repair, they're going



      15   to give it to somebody else.  So we won't get the job



      16   at all.



      17                  So there's incentive for us, if we can



      18   do a repair, to do a repair.  If it's going to be a



      19   replacement, we'll still get that replacement back.



      20   So, really, if we're going to do a replacement -- if



      21   it's going to be a repair, there's no additional



      22   visits to that customer.



      23                  If it's going to be a replacement,



      24   there's probably only going to be one additional



      25   visit to that customer because we would have had to
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       1   come back anyway.  We need to go out and look at it,



       2   as an HVAC contractor, to determine whether it can be



       3   done.  If it's a replacement, we're going to have to



       4   determine what kind of replacement it's going to be



       5   and come back anyway.  It never happens on that first



       6   visit.



       7                  So we appreciate it.  If we've gone



       8   through and we've worked this out with So Cal Gas --



       9   they've involved us in trying to come up with a



      10   solution -- and we feel like that is a good solution.



      11   And I think it's self-controlling.  It -- as an "HI"



      12   contractor, it helps us to -- if it can be a repair,



      13   we're going to do it because that's the best thing



      14   for us to do financially.



      15                  If it's going to be a replacement,



      16   well, it's going to be verified that it needs to be



      17   a replacement.  And we like that.



      18                  We're grateful to be part of these



      19   programs.  It's a wonderful thing to go out and see



      20   how many people's lives -- lives it changes.  And we



      21   hope that they continue, and we hope that we can



      22   continue to participate in them.



      23          MR. WOO:  Can I ask a question?



      24          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Sure.



      25          MR. WOO:  Because, you know, you install these
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       1   furnaces, it gives me an opportunity to ask a quick



       2   question.



       3          MR. WINEGAR:  Sure.



       4          MR. WOO:  You know that little valve



       5   underneath your house that when the gas company comes



       6   and say, "You don't have that valve"?  And so on the



       7   red tagging, you can't have any gas so you don't have



       8   anything going into your heater.



       9                  If you're -- say, your house was



      10   constructed and that that valve no longer exists.



      11   What do you do now?  You know, and you still have the



      12   wall heater and all that kind of stuff.



      13          MR. WINEGAR:  It's -- it's not a very common



      14   issue if what you're talking about is what I'm



      15   thinking about.  It happened more when -- what we do



      16   then, if we see an issue like that, we call the



      17   utility.



      18                  And the utility comes out with one of



      19   their representatives.  And they take care of the



      20   problem.  It's not something that we deal with



      21   ourselves.



      22          MR. WOO:  Okay.  So you -- you don't have the



      23   valve so you can switch on and off.  And just so



      24   would you -- would you replace a whole system if they



      25   qualify or --
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       1          MR. WINEGAR:  I would think that you would



       2   just replace that valve.  I'm not -- maybe someone



       3   else can help me on this.  I'm not --



       4          MR. WOO:  But if you can't find that valve



       5   'cause, you know, it's obsolete --



       6          MR. WINEGAR:  Well, I think that the answer,



       7   to me, would be we just need to figure a way to put



       8   that valve in.



       9          MR. WOO:  Oh.



      10          MR. WINEGAR:  But I'm not sure what valve



      11   you're talking about.



      12          MR. WOO:  I don't know.  And it's red-tagged



      13   at my house.  And I haven't had it --



      14                  So we don't have to turn --



      15          MR. WINEGAR:  Usually the issues are, if we go



      16   out and there's a safety issue to where there's



      17   improper venting or there's some type of an issue



      18   where it's a safety issue, then it's red-tagged.  And



      19   it's fixed as quickly as possible.



      20                  You know, that's often -- when we get



      21   it together and we start talking about problems, they



      22   go, "Well, what if it gets red-tagged and the



      23   customer doesn't have any gas service or anything



      24   else?"



      25                  And we've done it for years.  We've
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       1   been involved in this program.  When that happens,



       2   it's usually because of a safety issue.  And it's not



       3   like we go out and we red-tag that -- red-tag that



       4   house and all of us walk away from it and leave that



       5   customer hanging.



       6                  It's usually -- we see it's an issue.



       7   It's a problem.  We work with the utility companies.



       8   And both utility companies that we work with want to



       9   solve that problem as quickly as possible.  If we



      10   can't fix it, as a contractor, they find somebody



      11   else who can.



      12                  And I know, of the years that we've



      13   done this, I can't think of anybody where we've done



      14   it -- gone out; red-tagged a house; say, "We're going



      15   to shut off your gas.  Good luck."



      16                  I think it's usually something where



      17   it's an issue that needs to be fixed.  And we get



      18   right on and fix it as soon as possible it because we



      19   want them to have that service.



      20          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.



      21                  Mr. Mireles?



      22                  I guess Mr. Mireles is not here.



      23                  Dennis Osmer?



      24                  I'm sorry.  Actually, why don't you



      25   come up?  And on deck would be Irene Esparza







                                                             89

�





       1   Portilla.



       2          MR. OSMER:  My name's Dennis Osmer.  And I'm



       3   the Executive Director of Central Coast Energy



       4   Services of Watsonville, a nonprofit agency.  We



       5   provide low-income home-energy assistance, program-



       6   payment assistance, and weatherization services in



       7   Monterey, Santa Cruz, and San Benito counties.



       8                  We're also a contractor directly with



       9   PG&E in the LIEE refrigerator program, not the energy



      10   partners program.



      11                  In the past, I have not been active in



      12   the meetings of the LIOB; but that's because, until



      13   recently, the LIOB "has been" active.  I believe this



      14   is important because it seems that the recent



      15   inactivity reflected of you that the Board may not



      16   have served an effective purpose or -- or appreciated



      17   purpose in some centers of power within the PUC.



      18                  I enjoyed a level of comfort with the



      19   representation and advocacy for issues that are



      20   important in my community when the LIOB was holding



      21   regular meetings.  The LIOB provides a voice for



      22   those most impacted by poverty and by the LIEE



      23   program designs -- program designs of the utilities



      24   and the CPUC.



      25                  The process of decision-making at the
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       1   PUC is arcane; complex; and, by nature, exclusive to



       2   people of ample means, not to mention those of low



       3   income.



       4                  This process magnifies the



       5   difference -- distance between the program designs of



       6   the utilities and the PUC and the real world of



       7   service delivery and meeting the needs of the low-



       8   income households of California.



       9                  While you may not successfully involve



      10   members of the low-income community, you have the



      11   opportunity to involve, to a greater extent and to a



      12   greater purpose, the agencies and community-based



      13   organizations that are closest to them.



      14                  I urge you to consider -- continue



      15   regular meetings.  And I urge you to demand staff



      16   support of the LIOB.  I'd also like to suggest that



      17   you expand the membership of the Standardization Team



      18   to include people from the CBOs that are closest to



      19   direct service delivery and the real world of low-



      20   income needs.



      21                  You've already heard this morning some



      22   perspectives to which you were not previous -- of



      23   which you were not previously aware.  Please consider



      24   some small balance to the overwhelming representation



      25   of the utilities at the most basic level of the
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       1   standardization -- Standardization Team's work.



       2                  I also support the ability of the LIOB



       3   to monitor the process and make recommendations of



       4   this Standardization Team to the Commission in a



       5   timely manner.  Thank you.



       6          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.  Thanks for coming



       7   down today.



       8                  Ms. Portillo?



       9                  I don't see any response.  Is there



      10   anybody who I missed?  Is there anybody who wished



      11   they'd put their name on the list?



      12                  Yes, sir.  Why don't you come forward?



      13          MR. "LEAH":  My name is "Brian Leah"



      14   (phonetic).  I work with "WLCC's" Weatherization.  I



      15   wasn't prepared to speak.  But after sitting here,



      16   listening to what was being said, a situation



      17   actually happened to us just yesterday.



      18                  There was a -- an elderly lady,



      19   approximately 80 years old.  Her name was "Jonnie



      20   Dues" (phonetic).  On March 16, we repaired Jonnie



      21   Dues's floor furnace.  Okay?  On April 16, it was



      22   inspected and passed inspection.



      23                  I believe she turned it off.  She



      24   called the gas company to come turn it off.  And just



      25   recently, she tried to have it turned on.  That
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       1   furnace is not -- it's currently no longer working.



       2                  I think, with everything that's being



       3   said here as far as increasing furnace replacements



       4   to repair -- it possibly could be, you know, just



       5   resolved by, if a furnace is repaired and passes



       6   inspections and, within a short period of time after



       7   that, it fails or it doesn't turn on or go on to



       8   work, then it possibly should be able to be replaced



       9   without a lot of the red tape.



      10                  So instead of maybe -- maybe the



      11   number that we're actually looking at that may need



      12   to be replaced may really not be so great.  If a



      13   repair lasts for years and years and years, then



      14   fine.  We've done our job.



      15                  But if a repair only lasts for a very



      16   short period of time -- because that furnace is a



      17   floor furnace, it generally -- if it's a floor



      18   furnace, it generally is very, very old.  If it does



      19   go down in a very short period of time, what I told



      20   her was I was going to call the gas company and see



      21   if they can work something out.



      22                  So I don't know how big of a problem



      23   it may appear to be.  But I'm sure we can work it



      24   out.



      25                  The last thing is, also, as far as
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       1   working with the gas company -- I've only been doing



       2   it for about three years -- 90 percent, 95 percent of



       3   the response we get from the customers are



       4   overwhelmingly appreciative of what we do.  It is



       5   probably the most effective program that, you know,



       6   that I've ever, you know, worked with.



       7                  And seeing -- insulating a house does



       8   keep these people a lot warmer.  Generally, when you



       9   speak of low income, you're speaking of -- a great



      10   percentage of them are seniors, and the other percent



      11   of 'em are truly low income, especially in our



      12   territory.  We're in Watts.  So within a 10-mile



      13   radius, there's nothing there except for low income.



      14                  So I was listening, you know, to about



      15   finding whether it was the overall efficiency versus



      16   comfort as far as what we were doing.  There was a



      17   question right there.



      18                  And I would say almost all of it that



      19   we do is very effective.  And we can say whatever we



      20   want to say.  But, realistically, when you talk to



      21   the customers who do get this service, they're -- you



      22   know, they are pretty happy with what we're doing.



      23          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.



      24          THE REPORTER:  I need to change paper.



      25          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.  We're off the record.







                                                             94

�





       1                  (Off-the-record discussion.)



       2          MR. CASTRO:  My name is Martin Castro.  I'm



       3   the President and CEO of the Mexican-American



       4   Opportunity Foundation, a nonprofit organization



       5   headquartered here in Montebello in East Los Angeles.



       6                  Our organization is one of the largest



       7   nonprofit social services and family organizations in



       8   the country.  We actually serve seven counties in



       9   California.  But most -- the bulk of our services are



      10   here in this county -- Los Angeles County and



      11   particularly the service area in East L.A.



      12                  And we have senior programs,



      13   information-and-referral programs, home-repair



      14   programs, and home-secure programs where we make



      15   their homes the -- install devices in their homes to



      16   make them secure.



      17                  But we also have 28 licensed child day



      18   care centers all around the state.  20 of 'em are



      19   here in East Los Angeles.  And so these are child



      20   care centers where we enroll low-income children,



      21   three to five years of age, of low-income working



      22   parents.  We also have numerous job-training programs



      23   for unskilled youths, adults in our seven-county



      24   service area.



      25                  Last year, we served over 115,000 low-
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       1   and moderate-income people.  We've partnered for



       2   many, many years with both the Southern California



       3   Gas Company and Southern California Edison in



       4   enrolling our clients that qualify in the energy-



       5   reduction program -- the CARES program.



       6                  And I can't say enough about these two



       7   corporations that have been involved with our charity



       8   long before I came to work for the organization.



       9   These two corporations do some outstanding work in



      10   the community.  They also have a seat on our Board of



      11   Directors.



      12                  And they, of course, as other speakers



      13   have said -- nonprofit speakers have said, without



      14   the corporate support that they give to us, it would



      15   be difficult for us to offer some of the services or



      16   expanded services so -- but more importantly than



      17   that is the people that qualify for this assistance.



      18                  The 20 percent rate reduction in their



      19   energy bills mean so much.  If you're a welfare



      20   mother, single working mother who is out trying to



      21   become self-sufficient, this really helps.  When



      22   you're a senior on fixed income, this really helps.



      23                  And I was really glad to see the



      24   gentleman from RHA here.  We have a contract with



      25   them to provide enrollment into the Universal life --
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       1   lifeline telephone service to many of our customers



       2   who don't have a phone.  I think it's a travesty that



       3   families don't have phones.



       4                  And this service assists them, of



       5   course, as you know, you know, to qualify for a



       6   tremendous reduction in what many of us take for



       7   granted.  I mean I shudder to think what would happen



       8   in an emergency in a family in the middle of the



       9   night and they can't call 911 because they don't have



      10   a phone.



      11                  So I commend your volunteer Board here



      12   for looking out for the interests of the low-income



      13   masses.  And I truly appreciate what you do.  And I



      14   ask your support to continue funding with these



      15   programs.  Thank you very much.



      16          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.



      17                  Anybody else who I've missed?



      18                  Well, I want to thank all of you for



      19   spending time and exhibiting the patience necessary



      20   to get us to the public participation portion of



      21   this.



      22                  Shall we take five minutes and then



      23   come back and finish up?  Is that all right?  We'll



      24   do that.  And just five minutes.  We'll be talking



      25   whether there's anybody here to hear us or not in
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       1   five minutes.  We'll find out.  Off the record.



       2                  (Break:  3:43 - 3:51 P.M.)



       3          ALJ WEISSMAN:  On the record.



       4                  Art Pulido has said he'd like to make



       5   some comments.



       6                  Please go ahead.



       7          MR. PULIDO:  Thank you.  Thank you, Honorable



       8   Board, Public Utility Commissioners.



       9                  First, my name is Art Pulido.  I'm the



      10   President of Greater Cypress Park Neighborhood



      11   Council.  I'm also the president of Community Leaders



      12   Coalition.  We have a lot of, like, neighborhood



      13   councils all over the 1st, 14th, and 9th.  And I'm



      14   the Chairman of the -- of that board.  I'm also on



      15   Sierra Club.  And I'm on a PD -- a PAC for East L.A.



      16   for the MTA Board, elected by the people.



      17                  But I really came here to let you know



      18   what I've seen from the gas company, working in our



      19   community, and what they have produced and gave to



      20   our community.



      21                  We've been working with Mr. "John



      22   Garra" (phonetic) from his office for many years,



      23   from our "signal-mile events" (phonetic) to this



      24   Saturday's event, which I invite everybody here if



      25   they want to come.  It's at Cypress Park.  And it's
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       1   the biggest tournament in the northeast for the youth



       2   out there and the whole northeast communities.  And



       3   we were sponsored by the gas company this year.  Also



       4   Cinco de Mayo last 10 years -- sponsored by 'em.



       5                  They're reaching out to our



       6   communities.  They're coming and giving employment on



       7   our events, with a table there, encouraging our



       8   community coming and finding gas company employment



       9   and jobs.



      10                  So this is the kind of stuff that we



      11   need out there, not just for the northeast or East



      12   L.A., but all over.  We've had a tremendous



      13   partnership with them.  And I want to come in support



      14   of them to let them know that they're going a great



      15   job out there.



      16                  And I'm speaking for a lot of our



      17   communities.  So I just want to let you take into



      18   consideration the time and love that they gave to our



      19   community and continue to keep on doing it.  So thank



      20   you, gentlemen, ladies, and audience.



      21                  And I'm just here to encourage you to



      22   look at 'em.  And they're out there, man.  They're



      23   doing some -- they're doing great work.  Anytime you



      24   want to come, come Saturday to see what they've done.



      25                  So thank you for the time.  And thank







                                                             99

�





       1   you graciously for your audience.  Thank you.



       2          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you very much,



       3   Mr. Pulido.



       4                  And, actually, as it turns out, only



       5   one of the Commissioners up here is actually



       6   "Honorable."  So it's --



       7          MR. PULIDO:  Sorry.



       8          ALJ WEISSMAN:  All right.  Do any of the



       9   Members of the Board have any questions for Edison?



      10                  I've got one warm-up question for you,



      11   if you want to come back up for a minute.



      12          MR. PARKHILL:  "Warm up"?



      13          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Yes.  It's a rate-case-in-a-



      14   nutshell question for you.



      15          MR. PARKHILL:  It's a what?



      16          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Rate case in a nutshell.



      17          MR. PARKHILL:  Oh, man.



      18          ALJ WEISSMAN:  How did you decide that you



      19   wanted to increase your budget to $27.4 million?



      20          MR. PARKHILL:  Well, that's -- that's a good



      21   question.  And -- and we responded to that in a data



      22   request.



      23                  We had to provide comprehensive



      24   services to -- we had to provide comprehensive



      25   services to joint-utility customers.  Southern
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       1   California Gas was servicing about 45,000 homes.  Of



       2   those homes, estimated that 40,000 -- thirty-five to



       3   40,000 were -- were joint-utility customers.



       4                  We were servicing around 24,000 homes;



       5   so we just did the math.  And the number of homes,



       6   the average cost per homes -- that's how we arrived



       7   at the number.



       8          ALJ WEISSMAN:  All right.  I thank you.



       9                  Any other questions?



      10          MS. LOPEZ:  I have a question.



      11          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Yes?



      12          MS. LOPEZ:  I notice on the -- one of the



      13   reports there for the average cost of CARE capitation



      14   fees --



      15          MR. PARKHILL:  Uh-huh.



      16          MS. LOPEZ:  -- you are exceedingly -- three



      17   times larger than all the other utilities.  And I was



      18   wondering how that tied to your CARE --



      19          MR. PARKHILL:  Oh, I -- I -- that's the



      20   capitate -- the average cost for --



      21          MS. LOPEZ:  The average cost of CARE



      22   capitation fees.



      23          MR. PARKHILL:  -- for $14?  Is it $14?



      24          MS. LOPEZ:  No.  It's 54 --



      25          MR. PARKHILL:  Oh, it's 54?
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       1          MS. LOPEZ:  -- and everybody else is -- the



       2   highest is 13.



       3          UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Yeah.  That



       4   doesn't sound right.



       5          MR. PARKHILL:  Yeah.  I think -- I mean ours



       6   is -- ours is --



       7          UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Doesn't sound



       8   right.



       9          MR. PARKHILL:  -- maybe 14.



      10          UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER:  There's two



      11   errors on there.



      12          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Wait.  Wait.  Wait.  I've got a



      13   court reporter.  Only one person talking at a time.



      14   All right?  So that was just not there.



      15                  All right.  Go ahead.



      16          MR. PARKHILL:  There must be an error.  The --



      17   that number is to represent the average cost paid to



      18   capitation contractors, which cannot exceed $15.  So



      19   ours is in the 13, $14 range all the time.



      20          MS. LOPEZ:  Must be a typo, then, because it



      21   says, "54."  Okay.  Thank you.



      22          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you.



      23                  Any other questions?



      24                  Thank you very much.



      25          MR. PARKHILL:  Thank you.
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       1          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Let's move to SDG&E and So Cal



       2   Gas.  And I think you know our goal, which is to make



       3   sure that we're finished in about 15 minutes.



       4          MS. WHITING:  I don't think you have these



       5   yet; so I'm going to do San Diego.



       6          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Off the record.



       7                  (Off-the-record discussion.)



       8          ALJ WEISSMAN:  On the record, the slides for



       9   SDG&E will be labelled as Exhibit C.



      10                  (Exhibit C was identified for the



      11                   record.)



      12          ALJ WEISSMAN:  And the slides for Southern



      13   California Gas Company are Exhibit D.



      14                  (Exhibit D was identified for the



      15                   record.)



      16          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Why don't you go ahead?



      17          MS. WHITING:  Okay.  Thank you.



      18                  Let me start with San Diego Gas and



      19   Electric Company.  And I'm going to do an overview of



      20   the application that we filed.  I -- you have already



      21   been given a preview of information on the way the



      22   programs work, and you're familiar with that; so I'm



      23   not covering that.



      24                  And I will just say up front that any



      25   information you need that I don't have with me today
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       1   we'll be glad to provide to you.  And I will try to



       2   get through this very quickly for you.



       3                  Just to get started -- and I'm going



       4   to talk about San Diego's budget -- we are starting



       5   with the 2005 budget level.  And in the decision that



       6   was issued in April, I believe, the Commission at



       7   that time approved the budgets for both CARE and LIEE



       8   for 2005 and authorized us to file for an application



       9   for the next two years.



      10                  The LIEE budget -- both of our budgets



      11   were reduced in this decision.  And I need to explain



      12   a bit.  They weren't reduced in the area of program



      13   services.  The reductions were more in -- for



      14   example, we had asked to have some costs move over



      15   from base rates into the program for some of the CO



      16   testing, and that was denied.



      17                  And there were some costs for covering



      18   our call center representatives who answered CARE



      19   questions.  And that was denied.  So those reductions



      20   to the budgets did not affect the number of customers



      21   that we could serve.



      22                  So as we looked -- going ahead, we



      23   took a look at -- and I'm going to answer Steve's



      24   question in advance, I hope -- we took a look at



      25   whether -- you know, what budget we should go with.
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       1   We looked at the CARE budget.  We felt like we knew



       2   what we needed to do with that budget.



       3                  We looked at the LIEE budget and, in



       4   taking a look at that, decided that, because



       5   refrigerators have become a more -- an increasingly



       6   bigger part of our program and because of the



       7   benefits to the low-income customer of replacing more



       8   refrigerators, that we would request that the budget



       9   before 2005 be restored and that we would use those



      10   additional funds for refrigerators.



      11                  Refrigerator replacement.  Replacing



      12   an older refrigerator, a refrigerator that's about 10



      13   years old -- the newer refrigerators use about half



      14   of the electric energy -- it makes a big difference



      15   on the customer's bill.



      16                  It also provides a substantial



      17   electric-energy-and-demand savings because a



      18   refrigerator's on 24 hours a day.  So we are not



      19   changing the nature of the program.  But what we want



      20   to do is to do more refrigerators within the budget.



      21                  And so what we are -- on the next



      22   slide; I'm sorry -- and I'm down in the bottom part



      23   of this slide.  What we are doing is asking that the



      24   budget that was in effect before the latest decision



      25   be kept in place, at $13.4 million, and the
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       1   additional funds be used for refrigerators.



       2                  The rest of our program design is



       3   basically the same as what we have in 2005.  We will



       4   continue to provide comprehensive services.  We will



       5   continue to install all feasible measures.



       6                  And we will continue with -- I think I



       7   mentioned earlier this is true for both companies'



       8   programs that I oversee -- continuing to look for



       9   efficiencies in customer-service enhancements that we



      10   can find within the programs so that we can better



      11   provide the services and serve more customers.  That



      12   is a big focus for us.



      13                  Also for carryover, we, in filing our



      14   2006 application, did not anticipate any carryover



      15   because we didn't know whether there would be any.



      16   We budget, every year, the total amount of carryover



      17   that we have.  So for this year, for San Diego, we



      18   had about $3 million of carryover.  We budgeted that.



      19   We're hoping to spend that.



      20                  If we don't -- or if we do spend under



      21   the total budget plus the carryover, we will carry



      22   that into next year.  And our goal with that would be



      23   to really focus more of it on refrigerators than



      24   anything else, again, because that is such an



      25   important measure.
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       1                  The other point I wanted to make



       2   before I leave budgets is that, during the energy



       3   crisis, the state legislature allocated some funding



       4   to these programs.  And so for a couple of years, we



       5   had our base budget and we had the additional money



       6   from SBX1 -- SBX5?  SBX1-5. SBX1-5.



       7                  And in 2003, when the SBX1-5 money



       8   went away, the Commission raised our budgets.  So San



       9   Diego's base budget was increased from about 6



      10   million to the 13 million number just two years ago.



      11   So there was a big increase then.  And we've stayed



      12   at that level.



      13                  In our targets for 2006, we always --



      14   we put in the target based on the average cost, based



      15   on what we think we can do.  I'm happy to say we



      16   generally exceed these targets.  And we strive to do



      17   that.



      18                  But we're looking at weatherizing



      19   800 -- 8,000 homes; replacing 7,000 -- a little over



      20   7,000 appliances, but the majority of those are



      21   refrigerators; repair or replacing about 700 gas



      22   appliances; and providing our energy-education



      23   workshops.



      24                  As was mentioned by PG&E and, I



      25   believe, Edison, these targets can be affected by any
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       1   changes to the measures or any program changes that



       2   affect the way the money can be allocated.  And we



       3   just took a look over the past 10 years that we've



       4   been able to serve, through this program, about a



       5   hundred-thousand customers.  So the program has been



       6   at a pretty high level for quite some time.



       7                  One of the things that I wanted to



       8   cover -- and I'm going to do that in all the programs



       9   I talk about -- are the kinds of things -- when I



      10   say, "We look for better ways to run the program,"



      11   what are some of the things we've done?



      12                  And we're going to continue do that.



      13   And we work with our contractors and other interested



      14   parties to try to identify what we could do in order



      15   to provide better customer service, which means more



      16   people become aware of the program and are involved



      17   in it and in order, again, to serve more customers



      18   with the money that we have.



      19                  We have implemented a new database,



      20   which is a great improvement over what we had in the



      21   past.  And it allows us to be much more effective in



      22   our monitoring and reporting of the program.  It



      23   gives us a better tool, a more efficient tool to be



      24   able to see where we are with the program.



      25                  We've implemented auditing customer
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       1   agreements and income documentation to make sure that



       2   what -- what is -- what we have in the field is



       3   what's needed for the program.  And when we find



       4   something that needs attention, we work with our



       5   contractors to correct -- to fix it.



       6                  We've automated.  We always are



       7   looking at our processing functions to see what can



       8   be automated or streamlined and the forms.



       9                  One -- one of the things -- and I'll



      10   talk about outreach, in general, more when I get to



      11   CARE -- but it's very difficult, especially in the



      12   CARE program -- we're at the really, really, very



      13   hard-to-reach customers.



      14                  And we need to make sure that all the



      15   forms we're using for all of our programs and



      16   everything that we're communicating with our



      17   customers is understandable and we get away from long



      18   legal-looking forms and -- and just make sure that we



      19   have things that people will actually respond to.



      20                  So we do think that's an important



      21   service.  And it does actually save in the program



      22   because, if a customer can understand what they're



      23   getting the first time around, they can respond,



      24   don't need to ask questions, and can actually



      25   participate.
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       1                  For our CARE program, we are



       2   proposing, again, to continue with the program design



       3   and budget that we have going on this year.  We focus



       4   all of our attention on reaching our hard-to-reach



       5   customers.  We're -- we're finding that it's getting



       6   more and more difficult to get customers enrolled in



       7   the program.



       8                  So we are trying a lot of new things



       9   this year.  And we're looking at doing new things for



      10   next year.  And we are talking with all of the



      11   agencies that we work with in San Diego as -- and a



      12   lot of the governmental offices and officials as to



      13   "What can we do together to reach people?"



      14                  The majority of our outreach is



      15   through the local agencies.  That's the way we have



      16   to reach these customers.  Particularly where there



      17   are language barriers or there may be an issue of



      18   trust or whatever, we have to work through the local



      19   agencies.  And that's our focus.  So the more of that



      20   we can do, the better.



      21                  These numbers -- I'm not going to



      22   spend a lot of time on them because we just put in



      23   targets.  But we're not bound by those in terms of



      24   stopping at any of those.  Our goal is to get all the



      25   customers who are eligible and who wish to
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       1   participate signed up.



       2                  We're at about 70 percent.  And we've



       3   been trying very hard to get that increased.  It goes



       4   up and down.  One thing you should be aware of is



       5   that every year, based on a methodology that's been



       6   adopted by the Commission, the denominator -- the



       7   number of eligible customers -- changes.  And it



       8   increases every year.



       9                  So what happens to us a lot of times



      10   is we end up in December at 72 percent.  And then we



      11   have the new numbers in January.  And now we're down



      12   to 70 percent or 68 percent because of the



      13   calculation.  So while we're continuing to add



      14   customers, if we focus only on the percentage of



      15   participate -- participation, it's a moving number.



      16                  So our goal, again, is to get as many



      17   customers as we can enrolled.  And just to give you



      18   an idea of some of the things that we do -- and this



      19   is not everything -- the bill inserts and messages,



      20   we mail to all of our customers several times a year.



      21   We take advantage, whenever we can, of getting



      22   information in the bill.



      23                  We have really focussed on targeted



      24   direct mail.  We've taken information that we've



      25   learned about our customers from census data.  And we
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       1   are targeting those in areas that are probably



       2   eligible for the program, particularly where there



       3   are large gaps where we have a lot of eligible people



       4   and few are signed up.



       5                  And we have found that to be a very



       6   cost-effective method.  And we get very high response



       7   rates, higher than what direct mail normally --



       8   normally does.



       9                  We are doing some media advertising;



      10   but TV, especially, is pretty expensive.  So we have



      11   to look at what we can get for that.



      12                  We do have contracts with agencies.



      13   These are the agencies we have contracts with.  But



      14   we work with many more agencies.  We have an e-



      15   newsletter that goes out to over 400 agencies every



      16   quarter.  So there are a lot of other agencies we



      17   work with that we don't necessarily have contracts



      18   with.



      19                  We very much are in the community.



      20   We're out, whenever we're wanted, to do



      21   presentations.  And we cross-promote our programs



      22   through state -- other programs as much as we can.



      23   In my area, we are responsible for all of the



      24   programs targeted to the low- and limited-income



      25   customers.
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       1                  So we make sure that we are -- when we



       2   talk to a customer or contact a customer, we're



       3   letting them know about every program, not just one.



       4                  We are looking at an employee campaign



       5   where we do a lot of education for our employees.



       6   We're trying to get our tables out to a lot of



       7   churches, stores that will let us be there, our



       8   branch offices.



       9                  We coordinate with 211, which has been



      10   a really, really strong and effective coordination in



      11   San Diego because SDGE has been very involved with



      12   211 in San Diego.



      13                  We had the information at the cool



      14   zones.  We had the data sharing and automatic



      15   enrollment.  So all of those and more are -- are



      16   things that we're trying to address to get out with



      17   our customers.



      18                  We also -- quickly, we are also



      19   looking for enhancements to the program on the CARE



      20   side.  So the targeted direct mail for outreach was



      21   one example.



      22                  Simplifying letters and forms.



      23   Prepopulating forms.  Before we send a customer an



      24   application, we'll go ahead and put in their name and



      25   their information and account number and everything.
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       1   Makes it easier for the customer.  Makes it,



       2   actually, more likely that they will -- they will



       3   send it back.



       4                  We've done some other things along



       5   here, too; but in the interests of moving along, I



       6   want to get to the pilot because one of the things we



       7   looked at is "What are some different ways we can do



       8   things to sign up customers and to keep the customers



       9   that we have?"



      10                  CARE customers are required to



      11   recertify in the program every two years.  What we



      12   find is we work really hard to get people signed up



      13   on this program.  And then they get sent



      14   recertification materials, and they don't respond.



      15                  And we send them a second letter, and



      16   they don't respond.  And sometimes we call them.



      17          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  Excuse me.  Is that



      18   two-year recertification requirement set by law or by



      19   the --



      20          MS. WHITING:  By Commission.



      21          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  -- Commission?



      22          MS. WHITING:  I don't think it's in the



      23   legislation that set up CARE.  I think it's a



      24   Commission requirement.  



      25                  I'm pretty -- yeah.  I'm -- I'm sure
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       1   it is.  It's a Commission requirement.



       2                  So what we would like to do is -- the



       3   other thing we do for these customers is called a



       4   "verification" where, when the customer first signs



       5   up, they don't have to provide income documentation.



       6   But we randomly go out and ask customers to provide



       7   that.



       8                  Part of our random process is we have



       9   a model that the customers go through, which will



      10   identify those who are probably likely to qualify



      11   through demographics.  And I can't take the time to



      12   go into all of that.  But what it does is it takes



      13   the total number of people that could be verified



      14   and -- and sets aside those who are probably going to



      15   qualify and we don't send them the verification



      16   letter.



      17                  We're proposing to try that same thing



      18   on this recertification side that, if we're pretty



      19   sure the customers, because of all of these



      20   characteristics, are going to recertify, "Let's not



      21   do it this year.  Let's take care of them every four



      22   years," rather than have them do that because, again,



      23   there's -- there are a lot of people that just don't



      24   respond to the mail.



      25                  The other thing that we would like to
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       1   do is a pilot of recertifying people by phone rather



       2   than having them sign something and send it in



       3   because, what we find is, we do reach somebody by



       4   phone after we've sent them a couple of letters.



       5   They still may not send something in.



       6                  If we could re -- if we could



       7   recertify them by phone right away, it's done.  And I



       8   think, down the road there, we're going to be looking



       9   at, perhaps, having some kind of interactive-voice



      10   message that would -- you know, like, when you get a



      11   credit card and you have to activate it?  And you



      12   call in.  And they tell you, you know, "Press this



      13   number if you want to activate your card."



      14                  And maybe there's a way to do that in



      15   recertification -- something that's simple for the



      16   customer to do, much cheaper than what we go through



      17   now, and much more effective.



      18                  This last point is -- we're proposing



      19   these as pilots because this is a statewide program,



      20   and so we're proposing that we try these things, see



      21   how they work.  But we are also open to and looking



      22   for other things that we can try out.



      23                  So we're going to be -- we are talking



      24   and will continue to talk to anyone who's interested



      25   to talk to us about "What are some new things we can
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       1   try within the current parameters of the program?" or



       2   even to come back to the Commission and say, "Let's



       3   change some things in the program."



       4                  These two things need Commission



       5   approval to do because -- because the recertification



       6   process is set up by the Commission.



       7                  Okay.  That's San Diego.  That's



       8   SDG&E.



       9          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Three minutes.



      10          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  Three minutes.



      11          MS. WHITING:  It's going to take three minutes



      12   to get here.



      13          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thanks very much.



      14          MS. WHITING:  You'll see a lot of



      15   similarities; so it will be -- it will go quickly.



      16                  Okay.  Again, for Southern California



      17   Gas Company, the budgets were reduced somewhat for



      18   the same reasons that I talked about earlier.  We're



      19   staying with those budgets.  They do not affect the



      20   number of customers that we can serve through the



      21   programs.



      22                  We are proposing to continue the



      23   current program design.  We will continue



      24   comprehensive services, installing all feasible



      25   measures.  And we will continue to look for ways to
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       1   be more effective and provide better service.



       2                  We're looking at weatherizing 40,000



       3   homes.  That's with the current budget, without



       4   carryover.  We -- we do a lot more than that.  We



       5   have been able to do a lot more of that every year



       6   because of the carryover.



       7                  I wanted to mention, too, that the



       8   Southern California Gas Company -- prior to 2003, the



       9   base budget was $18 million.  After the "SBX5" money



      10   went away, the base budget has been increased from 18



      11   to about 33 million.  So that budget has been almost



      12   doubled within the last two years.  And we're going



      13   to maintain the current budget.



      14                  And So Cal Gas has served over 300,000



      15   customers through this program in the last 10 years.



      16   Again, we're looking at ways to provide better



      17   service and to more effectively use the money in the



      18   program.



      19                  We have -- and we've worked with our



      20   contractors.  We had a lot of meetings with our



      21   contractors and attend other meetings that they have.  



      22                  Streamlining of agreements.  We have



      23   the contractors implementing the NGAT testing, the



      24   furnace repair and replacements you've heard a lot



      25   about today.  That, for us, is a measure that we
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       1   believe provides better service and more effective



       2   use of money.



       3                  And it did save us substantial money.



       4   It did not cost extra.  It actually saved substantial



       5   money and allowed us to serve over 5,000 more



       6   customers in 2004.  



       7                  Automation is really important.  And



       8   we've done things to reduce other costs.  And that's



       9   something that we're going to continue.



      10                  For CARE, on the So Cal Gas side, we



      11   are at about 72, -3 percent?



      12          UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER:  2.



      13          MS. WHITING:  72 percent.  Thank you.



      14                  And -- I'm trying to talk fast -- the



      15   same kinds of things -- we have the same issues about



      16   the customers that we are now trying to reach.  But



      17   I'm not convinced that that -- those remaining



      18   customer don't want to participate.  We need to get



      19   to them.  And we need to get them signed up.



      20                  We reached our 1 million number



      21   recently.  We're real proud of that.  These are the



      22   same kinds of things that you can look at that we're



      23   doing.  We're doing the same kinds of things in Los



      24   Angeles in our -- the Los Angeles area for So Cal Gas



      25   that we're doing in San Diego.
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       1                  We're really looking at getting out



       2   into the community and working with the local



       3   agencies.  And you heard from some of them today.



       4                  Again, we have some examples of things



       5   that we've done -- some of them are very similar



       6   because, if we found something that was a good idea,



       7   we could do it at both companies.  We are looking at



       8   implementing the probability model for verification



       9   at So Cal Gas as we do for San Diego.



      10                  We do a lot of data exchange with



      11   Edison.  We started to do that with PG&E where our



      12   service territories cross.



      13                  And the -- we are proposing the one



      14   pilot right now for So Cal Gas, which is the



      15   probability model for recertification.  And that's --



      16   that will need Commission approval because it is a



      17   change because it will have some people recertifying



      18   every four years instead of every two years.



      19                  And, again, we are making a concerted



      20   effort to get input from those around us to -- to see



      21   what kinds of things we can come up with.  And as an



      22   example of that, I can tell you, from the San Diego



      23   side, we worked with "Greenlining" (phonetic) on the



      24   proposal for refrigerators that we have in that



      25   application.
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       1                  And they have filed comments in



       2   support of that.  They were very interested in us



       3   getting more refrigerators out there.  And we figured



       4   out a way that we could get the oldest



       5   refrigerators -- the pre-93 refrigerators, which are



       6   the worst efficient -- worst in efficiency --



       7   replaced in a low-income sector in about five years.



       8                  So that's our goal there.  And if we



       9   can do it faster, that would be even better.  Okay.



      10          MS. LOPEZ:  I have a question.



      11                  On the weatherized homes, do they have



      12   energy education done one-on-one?  Or are they part



      13   of the workshop?



      14          MS. WHITING:  No.  Every home gets energy



      15   education on a one-on-one.  The workshops are a



      16   separate component where we work with agencies to put



      17   on a workshop for people to come to but -- and so



      18   those are a little bit on the side -- a little



      19   different.



      20          MS. LOPEZ:  All right.



      21          MS. WHITING:  But every home gets the one-



      22   on-one energy education.



      23          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Any other questions?



      24          MR. NALL:  I don't have a question, just a



      25   comment.  I'm hoping, Yolie, in looking  at your
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       1   application, that the Commission does approve your



       2   pilots.



       3                  The recertification problem is a big



       4   problem for all the utilities.  For us -- we're



       5   always looking for ways to -- to communicate more



       6   often with customers.  But I think it's -- and Jack,



       7   you can correct me -- it's, like, 50 percent of the



       8   folks that we send something out to, do not send



       9   anything in.



      10                  And then, when we finally take them



      11   off the rate, within a year, most of them are back



      12   again.



      13          MS. WHITING:  Right.



      14          MR. NALL:  And that tells you something about



      15   how difficult it is to get folks to sign up.  So when



      16   I saw these -- I think these are very exciting pilots



      17   that the Commission ought to approve.  And I wish we



      18   had proposed them, actually.



      19          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  Well, that --



      20          MR. PARKHILL:  They're on my hard drive.  We



      21   will let you share it.



      22          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  That actually raises



      23   a question, which is, I guess, there is the amount --



      24   the matter of funding.  But we'll --



      25                  I want to caucus with our ALJ and see,
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       1   if it appears that these are good pilot programs,



       2   whether we have enough flexibility to ask for some



       3   supplemental filings and basically get some pilots



       4   going in the other utilities or whether we have



       5   enough information that, if SDG&E and So Cal Gas are



       6   running pilots, that that gets the information



       7   needed.



       8          MS. WHITING:  And it --



       9          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Well, heck, we just got the



      10   testimony from Edison so --



      11          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  Yeah.  Well --



      12          MS. WHITING:  And it wasn't -- I mean we



      13   just -- we didn't increase any funding to do that.



      14   There are some up-front IT costs to do that.  But it



      15   also could be something that, you know, we could work



      16   together -- the utilities could work together --



      17          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  Not through that



      18   Standardization Team, I hope.



      19          MS. WHITING:  -- new Standardization Team for



      20   CARE.



      21          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Any other questions for -- for



      22   the Sempra utilities?



      23                  Thank you.  That was an inspirational



      24   sprint to the finish line.



      25                  And I'd like to turn things, with all







                                                             123

�





       1   the time we have left, back over to Alan Woo and --



       2   and try to see what kind of time his Board Members



       3   would like to leave us with.



       4          MR. WOO:  I'd like to reconvene the LIOB for



       5   the business portion, again.  I'd like to thank our



       6   Administrative Law Judge Steve Weissman for giving



       7   the opportunity for the public to speak.



       8                  I'd like to just start off -- and I'd



       9   like to get the rest of the Board's opinion -- I want



      10   to thank the utilities for their information and for



      11   the public for coming out.



      12                  One thing I do know is that -- it goes



      13   without saying -- it's highly evident to me, as a



      14   community member and attending many events out there



      15   for organizations, that Sempra and Edison does do a



      16   good job with their public affairs department in



      17   terms of going out there and doing a most excellent



      18   job with their CARE program.



      19                  And I think, sometime, it seems, when



      20   we start discussing, it appears that we have a



      21   scenario.  And I think that the changes that are



      22   going on now, with the support of the CPUC staff and



      23   also the utilities having some vehicle to converse



      24   with the communities on the technical part of it is a



      25   direction that I'd like to see us continue and
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       1   strengthen and get some teeth to that.



       2                  And I know that there's two sides on



       3   replacement or repair.  And I think that that kind of



       4   marginalizing is not where I want to go.  And there's



       5   a recommendation for the LIOB.



       6                  But I like it for the fact that, in



       7   Yolie's testimony before, they are moving in -- in



       8   the direction of having some ability to go back and



       9   review some of those cases and have and operate



      10   programs that are very mandated and categorical and



      11   are regulated.  Sometimes you live too much by



      12   regulation.  And then you don't do some commonsense



      13   thing.



      14                  And I think, as I hear Yolie and the



      15   utilities -- they'd like to do some common sense.



      16   But it's -- it's either/or, black or white in term of



      17   those policies.



      18                  So I'm hoping that we could revisit it



      19   and assess how we could arrive at some kind of



      20   guidance without it being too big of a law or



      21   regulation but it would also be a commonsense thing



      22   to see how you could go back and maybe redo something



      23   or -- or repair that.  I don't know what the answer



      24   is.



      25                  But I think that I'd like to find a
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       1   mechanism which we do, you know, measure that, you



       2   know, or some way to get some study on that so that



       3   we -- we could help provide some guidance on that.



       4                  Also I think that, before we refer



       5   things back to Standardization Committee, I think we



       6   ought to look at the composition of that so that it



       7   can include a broader segment so that, if it's



       8   "attuned for assessing," there's a -- there's a lot



       9   more input going in.



      10                  And I think, when there's -- was a lot



      11   more input, it's great.  We -- we got a lot more



      12   done.  We got some more openness in term of looking



      13   at things.  And it didn't seem as -- as adversarial,



      14   because I think that, during the last period when we



      15   were not meeting as LIOB, it gave the appearance that



      16   utilities were not listening and the people didn't



      17   have an opportunity to -- to comment.



      18                  And I think the changes, by having the



      19   strong staff support and participation and also by



      20   having regular meetings, I think it begins to change



      21   that.  And also, it doesn't place the utilities in



      22   the position of having to be defensive or be the



      23   enemy.  And then -- and I don't like to see that as



      24   well.



      25                  So I think by having our regular
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       1   meetings, for the record, will help to ensure that we



       2   do have an excellent dialogue to get at the heart of



       3   the matter without just, you know, creating size.



       4                  And I -- now, I'd like to invite any



       5   of the Board Members to add on.  Anybody?  Maria?



       6                  Ortensia?



       7          MS. LOPEZ:  Yeah.  I'd like to --



       8                  Well, I'd like to ask, first,



       9   processwise, we're to make comments about the



      10   presentations today?



      11          MR. WOO:  Yes.  And also I think the



      12   administrative law judge, as part of this proceeding,



      13   would like some opinion from us on the budget and



      14   everything else that went on this morning.



      15          MS. LOPEZ:  No.  I think the public hearing



      16   spoke for itself in terms of the support that there



      17   is for these programs.  I don't think that there's



      18   anything extraordinary in terms of the budget levels



      19   they're asking.  And they all seem to pan out well,



      20   budgetwise, for the different services they're



      21   involved in.



      22                  The issue that does come to face is



      23   the one around the replacement and repairing of



      24   furnaces.  And I'd like to suggest that we do



      25   consider -- I think there were five people that spoke
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       1   against it and the rest didn't.  So I think it is an



       2   issue that needs to be studied further.



       3                  I'd like to recommend that a committee



       4   be put together to work around this that would



       5   include the utilities and vendors and installers --



       6   all of the stakeholders that could really give us a



       7   picture of what is best.  I mean we don't have



       8   information one way or the other.



       9                  And, you know, I'm going to say my



      10   peeve here -- where, if we had the "NEES" (phonetic)



      11   assessment, we might be surprised at what we'd find.



      12                  But having said that, I really think



      13   that we would -- that would be my recommendation --



      14   that we consider having that done.  And I think Ron



      15   would be an excellent addition to this since he's in



      16   the business.



      17          MR. WOO:  Any additional comments from other



      18   Board Members?



      19                  Maria?



      20          MS. JUAREZ:  Yes.  I just have a question.  It



      21   had to do with the cool centers.  I was reading the



      22   second-round comments from the Office of Ratepayer



      23   Advocates with respect to the applications.  And I



      24   noticed, in Southern California Edison's



      25   presentation, that the cool centers, you know --
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       1   well, the PowerPoint indicates that the funding was



       2   reduced to 95,000.



       3                  And I think, in the comments from the



       4   Office of Ratepayer Advocates, that it indicates --



       5   and I might be missing some documents in between, you



       6   know, these -- these -- these written comments --



       7   that it indicates that the -- oh, that SCE has



       8   indicated that they're not going to operate a cool



       9   center program in '05.



      10                  And ORA is questioning why, after many



      11   years seeking the authority to operate the cool



      12   centers, that they choose now not to operate them.



      13   So I'd like to hear "What's the rationale behind not



      14   operating them?"



      15          MR. PARKHILL:  Well, the --



      16          MR. WOO:  Can you come up to the microphone.



      17          MR. PARKHILL:  I'm sorry.  Jack Parkhill,



      18   Southern California Edison.



      19                  Feel free to jump in, Mr. Nall.



      20          MR. NALL:  I've spent a while working on cool



      21   center.  So I just may do that.



      22          MR. PARKHILL:  John did spend a lot of time on



      23   this.



      24                  But the -- the bottom line on here on



      25   this issue is that the agencies that we have worked







                                                             129

�





       1   with in the past could not work within the guidelines



       2   that the energy division set forth.



       3                  In terms of line items that were not



       4   allowed, at this time, they could not come up with a



       5   budget and a program within the time frame that we



       6   had, that we were working with for 2005.



       7          MR. NALL:  Yeah.  What -- what had happened



       8   was there was some concern that we were using LIEE



       9   or CARE dollars for cool centers.  And "Was it an



      10   energy-efficiency program?  Was it a CARE-outreach



      11   program?  What was it?"  That was kind of energy



      12   division's concern.



      13                  We sat down -- and it was ORA's



      14   concern.  So we sat down with ORA and said, "Well,



      15   let's come up with some kind of balancing-account



      16   treatment.  It'll be -- it won't be part of the LIEE



      17   or CARE budget."



      18                  They agreed to that.



      19                  We filed it that way.  And then, in



      20   the confusion, I think, of trying to get a decision



      21   out for '05, it went back to being a CARE-outreach



      22   program rather than a program to give people living



      23   in some of our most extreme-climate areas a place to



      24   go to stay cool at the hottest time of day.



      25                  They -- they cut the budget down to
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       1   just a few categories, rather than transportation to



       2   get people to these centers; some nutrition, snacks



       3   that they could have once they got there -- we're



       4   talking about some real outlying areas like Baker.



       5                  I don't know.  I'm not quite sure



       6   where Baker is.  But the fact that nobody else does,



       7   either, tells you how, you know --



       8                  Very good.



       9                  So we went to the -- oh, and the other



      10   thing was that anybody that went to a cool center had



      11   to be means tested to make sure they were low income.



      12                  When we took all of that to -- to the



      13   people that were running these centers for us for



      14   several years -- Blythe, Ripley, Palo Verde, places



      15   like that -- they said, "We can't run a center under



      16   these constraints."



      17                  So that's one reason we didn't propose



      18   it for '06.  We were also supposed to run a pilot in



      19   '05 and, from that pilot, draw lessons for '06.



      20   Unfortunately -- and then -- unfortunately, we had to



      21   file on June 1, before a cool center would have ever



      22   opened.  We could not run the pilot.



      23                  So that's kind of what happened to



      24   cool centers.  We're going to revisit it.  I think



      25   there may be a renewed interest on the part of the
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       1   Commission and energy division in cool center



       2   concept.  And so we're going to find a way to revisit



       3   it.



       4          MR. WOO:  So, in other words, you couldn't



       5   include in this budget because of time limit, but



       6   it's not a lack of commitment to it?  You still --



       7          MR. NALL:  Oh, no.



       8          MR. WOO:  -- want to fix it up?



       9          MR. NALL:  Correct.



      10          MS. JUAREZ:  So it is in the budget; right?



      11          UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Right.



      12          MS. JUAREZ:  Did I hear 95 --



      13          MR. PARKHILL:  95,000.



      14          MS. JUAREZ:  -- is in the budget -- built into



      15   it?



      16          MR. PARKHILL:  For 2005.



      17          MS. JUAREZ:  Uh-huh.



      18          MR. PARKHILL:  And what we said was that, if



      19   we did not spend that money, then we would just



      20   transfer it over to CARE outreach.



      21          MR. NALL:  And it's not in the budget for '06.



      22          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Or '7.



      23          MR. NALL:  Or '7.



      24          MR. WOO:  I'm sorry.



      25          MS. JUAREZ:  So it's gone?
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       1          MR. NALL:  It's gone as far as putting it in a



       2   LIEE or a CARE --



       3          MR. PARKHILL:  Right.



       4          MR. NALL:  -- but we never proposed that



       5   anyway.



       6          MR. PARKHILL:  Right.  We proposed to use a



       7   different balancing account for it, not for it to



       8   come out of CARE or LIEE.



       9          COMMISSIONER GRUENEICH:  However, my -- my



      10   understanding, to be absolutely accurate, is it's not



      11   in the utility proposal to the Commission to the



      12   extent that ORA, as a party, or other parties are



      13   suggesting that there be money allocated to this



      14   program.



      15                  I believe the Commission, in its



      16   discretion, could do so.  And what it would mean,



      17   then, is that some other aspect of the program would



      18   not be funded because we can't just add on more



      19   money.  My memory, again, is we live within what the



      20   utility has requested.



      21                  But I believe there is the ability for



      22   the Commission itself to direct that they do this



      23   program.



      24                  (Feedback from the sound system.)



      25          MS. JUAREZ:  Well, I think --
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       1                  (Continued loud feedback.)



       2          MS. JUAREZ:  Well, I want to encourage Edison



       3   to pursue it.  I think that Riverside County operates



       4   22 cool centers.  And I think the $95,000 that's



       5   budgeted can more than support a very effective cool-



       6   center approach within the different communities.



       7                  I guess I -- we operate -- we've been



       8   operating them for four or five years.  We've had



       9   over 6,500 people that participate in the cool



      10   centers.  And it's a -- it's just a really important



      11   program.  There's all kinds of benefits in it.



      12                  You know, we have extreme high



      13   temperatures.  It's not uncommon to hit a hundred



      14   and -- I think, in Blythe, it was a hundred-



      15   and-thirty degrees at one time this year.  So it does



      16   provide for a place for individuals to go --



      17   families, seniors, low income.  You can tailor them



      18   to provide all kinds of education, promotion of all



      19   kinds of programs.



      20                  So I'd like to encourage Edison to



      21   pursue that -- continue -- and all the other utility



      22   companies also.  And we'd be more than happy to work



      23   with you, providing technical assistance on how to



      24   effectively run some cool centers.



      25          MR. WOO:  Yolie?
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       1                  And then I think we need to kind of



       2   adjourn because of parking and everything else.



       3          MS. WHITING:  Just very quickly, SDG&E has a



       4   program similar but very different on cool zones --



       5   San Diego County's program -- and SDG&E has supported



       6   it in the past.  And we supported it paying for



       7   transportation and incremental staff.  And we helped



       8   them with promotion.



       9                  And this same decision didn't allow us



      10   to do that this year.  So we've been supporting them



      11   in other ways.  We haven't included anything



      12   specifically -- it's only thirty to $50,000 a year --



      13   we haven't included it in 2006 yet.  We are looking



      14   at "How can we put something together that can meet



      15   the guidelines of the decision?"



      16                  But I don't know if we'll be able to



      17   do that.



      18          MR. WOO:  Thank you.



      19                  And I want to thank everyone for



      20   coming out.  I'm going to turn this back to Steve to



      21   close the actual proceeding.



      22                  But I want to thank staff -- if we



      23   could work together so that our meetings will have



      24   time for public comment.  And, as Chair, I'm going to



      25   try to really plan it out a lot better and take
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       1   responsibility for that.



       2                  Steve?



       3          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Thank you very much for your --



       4   all of your attention this afternoon.  It's -- I want



       5   to, once again, thank the staff -- all four of the



       6   people I'm looking at, especially the two who haven't



       7   had a chance to speak very much today but actually,



       8   without whom, this event would not have been possible



       9   and -- and the note-taking and everything that's gone



      10   behind -- it's not been an easy day or an easy week



      11   in setting this up.



      12                  And I want to thank you for that.



      13                  It's been really neat being a de facto



      14   board member for the afternoon.



      15          MR. WOO:  Come any time.



      16          ALJ WEISSMAN:  Okay.  And I think that's --



      17   unless anybody else has a final comment, that's all



      18   that we have at this public participation hearing.



      19   And it's now adjourned.



      20           (Proceedings concluded at 4:33 P.M.)
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